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OUR VISION

TCIEXPRESS should be a customer oriented, multi-
technology, multi-specialist transport system 
in the Indian and International markets, with a 
proven commitment to excellence in every facet 
of activity and pursuit of value based policies to 
satisfy aspirations of society, customers, vendors, 
employees, shareholders and the transport 
industry.

gekjk /;s;

VhlhvkbZ ,Dlizsl ns”k&fons”k ds cktkjksa esa] xzkgd&dsafnzr] 
cgq&izkS|ksfxdh vk/kkfjr vkSj cgq&fo”ks’kK okgu iz.kkfy;ksa 
ds lapkyu okyh daiuh gS tks lekt] xzkgdksa] oSaMjksa] 
deZpkfj;ksa] “ks;j/kkjdksa rFkk ifjogu m|ksx dh vkdka{kkvksa 
dks iwjk djus ds fy,] viuh fofHkUu xfrfof/k;ksa esa 
mRd`’Vrk lqfuf”pr djus ds lkFk&lkFk ewY; vk/kkfjr 
uhfr;ksa dks viukus ij t+ksj nsrh gSA

xq.koRrk uhfr

xzkgd dh [kq”kh ds fy, vPNh xq.koRrk izca/ku iz.kkyh dk 
ikyu djrs gq, ekuo lalk/ku] lapkyu iz.kkyh] lwpuk 
izkSn~;ksfxdh vkSj cqfu;knh <kaps esa fujarj fodkl ds ek/;e 
ls izHkkoh] fo”oluh; vkSj le; ij rst forj.k lsokvksa 
dks iznku djukA

QUALITY POLICY

To provide efective, reliable and on time express 
delivery services through continuous development 
of human resources, operational systems, 
information technology and infrastructure, while 
adhering to the best Quality Management System 
for customer’s delight. 
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TCIEXPRESS established in 1996, is 
now a leader in TIME DEFINITE express 
distribution in India. 

TCIEXPRESS has demerged from 
TCI (Transport Corporation of India 
Limited) with a vision to maintain this 
LEADERSHIP IN EXPRESS, ON TIME 
DELIVERY AND CUSTOMER SERVICE 
above all. Being a young, vibrant 
yet experienced Service provider, 
TCIEXPRESS has honed itself with 
advanced technology and deep domain-
expertise to ofer customised solutions 
for express delivery. The company 
announced its listing on the National 
Stock Exchange (NSE) and the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) from December 15, 
2016 with a credit rating of A1+ (ICRA) 
and A+ (CRISIL) and registered a robust 
revenue growth in 2016-17.

Introduction
The wide spectrum of our services which 
includes Surface Express, Domestic and 
International Air Express, E-Com Express, 
Priority Express and Reverse Express 
are spread across multiple industry 
segments such as Automobile spare parts, 
Pharmaceuticals, retail, e-commerce, 
Telecom and 50 % Revenue contributer 
as  SMEs. With largest reach domestically, 
we are expanding our footprints globally 
as well.

We leverage technology like CCTV 
surveillance, Central Control Monitoring, 
GPS enabled vehicles, ERP linked 
branches to ofer seamless services to our 
internal and external customers.

Our consistency in performance 
is strongly based on our two core 
competencies – Speed and service 
excellence; they have helped us to ofer 
Day deinite express delivery solutions 
to all our customers. We have presence 
across the country servicing more than 
40,000 pickup and delivery points with 
4000+ containerised vehicles. TCIEXPRESS 
is well equipped to ofer solutions to 670 
out of 675 districts in India. There are 28 
sorting centers which are strategically 
placed across the country to ensure a 
channelized process. We have spread our 
global footprints in various parts of the 
globe by servicing 202 countries. With 28 
air gateways, we ensure a swift delivery 
service across the world.

Revenue growth 
2016-17

14%

PAT growth

44%

ROCE @

44%
Location serviced  

40,000+

Fleet on road

4000+

28
Sorting centres 

strategically
located in every 

state

550
own branches
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Chairman’s Message

I sincerely thank our customers, vendors, 
stakeholders. These are momentous times 
with many structural changes happening 
in economy and business environment. 
Last year, we made good progress on 
many fronts, including building out 
strategic platforms, technology, and 
overall business growth. I am happy to 
see the incredibly talented and dedicated 
people at TCIEXPRESS working as a 
team for achieving  growth and 
customer satisfaction. 

TCIEXPRESS is a specialist in express 
distribution in India. Established in 1996, 
as one of the foremost divisions of its 
parent company Transport Corporation of 
India Limited (TCIL), and demerged with a 
vision to maintain the leadership  in door-
to-door express business in India that 
places customer satisfaction through on 
time delivery services at the highest order.

Our Company has been growing 
meticulously with its wide distribution 
network locally and globally with its 
current 550+ owned branches covering 
more than 40,000 locations. We are well 
equipped to ofer time-deinite solutions 
to 670 out of 675 districts in India.

With our wide spectrum of services 
comprising Surface express, Domestic 
and International air express, E-commerce 
last mile delivery , Priority and Reverse 
express services, we intent to play an 
important role in shaping and building 
India.

At TCIEXPRESS, customer satisfaction 
has always been our primary goal with 
a proven commitment to excellence in 
express delivery services.

D.P. Agarwal

Chairman, TCIEXPRESS

Our Company has been 
growing meticulously 
with its wide distribution 
network locally and 
globally with its current 
550+ owned centres 
covering more than 
40,000 locations. 
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I am pleased to present our Annual 

Report for the year ended 31st March 

2017. The results are strong and 

promising, we have witnessed a net 

revenue increase of 14% to 755.24 

crores. We were able to achieve this 

growth primarily through internal 

efforts, and also because of positive 

economic sentiments of the country.

Over the years, changes in India 

across customer needs, macro and 

micro economic conditions, fuel cost 

escalations, and various other challenges, 

our company’s core focus has continued 

to remain towards customer service 

excellence, with growth and proitability.

I am positive with India’s fastest GDP 
growth, implementation of GST, 
infrastructure investment and increased 
logistics demand will bring in positive 
impact to our company.

Financial results for the year ended 

31st March 2017:

Net Revenue increased by 14%

EBITDA stads at 67.63 crores

Proit after Tax (PAT) jumped by 44% 

to Rs 40.71 Crores.

Interim dividend is at 80%

Chander Agarwal

Managing Director, TCIEXPRESS

We were able to achieve 
this growth primarily 
through internal efforts, 
and also because of 
positive economic 
sentiments of the country.

6
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D.P. Agarwal

Chairman & Director

Phool Chand Sharma

Whole Time Director & CEO
Murali Krishna Chevuturi

 Director
Prashant Jain

Director

Vineet Agarwal

  Director

Ashok Kumar Ladha

Director
Taruna Singhi

 Director

Chander Agarwal

Managing  Director
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SURFACE EXPRESS
40,000 Pickup & Delivery 

Locations.

Customized Value added 

services.

DOMESTIC AIR EXPRESS
Connecting 34 domestic 

airports. 

24hr delivery into Tier

1 Cities.

Multimodal options for 

small towns.

Time sensitive distribution.

E-COMMERCE EXPRESS
Last mile delivery service.

Technology driven product.

Effective market place 

handling.

Multi-modal network 

leverage.

Value added feature of Cash-

on-Delivery.

Focus on tier II and III cities.

INTERNATIONAL AIR 
EXPRESS

Servicing 202 countries 

globally.

3rd Country Billing option.

REVERSE EXPRESS
Customized Reverse

pick ups.

Effective Return 

Management.

Value Added Services

Collection on Delivery for B2C
Customized Solutions as per the 

Sunday/Holiday delivery 
services

(Scanned POD image available 
on the web on same day of 
delivery of the shipment)

ODA Services (Out of Delivery)

COD
Key Account 
Management

(KAM)

Sunday
Delivery

EPOD

ODA

95% 5%B2B B2C

Our Services

8
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SME 50%

Automotive 13%

Pharma /
Healthcare 11%

Engineering 7%

Telecom 6%

Consumer Durables 6%

Lifestyle 7%

INDUSTRY VERTICAL PRODUCT MIX

Surface Express
86% Air Express

8%

E-com Express

5%

Air Intl Express
1%

India has the second largest road network 
across the world at 5.23 million km. This 
road network transports more than 64.9 
percent of all goods in the country and 85 
per cent of India’s total passenger traic.

Road transportation has gradually 
increased over the years with the 
improvement in connectivity between 
cities, towns and villages in the country.

During FY17-18, Government of 
India allocated USD 9.51 billion for 
development of national highways across 
the country.

The Indian roads carry 65 per cent of its 
freight and movement of freight by roads 
is growing at a rapid rate.

TCIEXPRESS surface growth in sync with GOI Initiative 
to improve road infra

Cognizant of the need is to create an 
adequate road network to cater to the 
increased traic and movement of goods, 
Government of India has earmarked 
20 per cent of the investment of US$ 
1 trillion reserved for infrastructure during 
the 12th Five-Year Plan (2012–17) to 
develop the country’s roads.

Since our 86% revenue share comes 

from Surface express and Government 

push to improve road infra would 

support our business objectives.

GDP growth is expected to be between 
6.75 and 7.50 per cent in 2017-18. During 
October-December 2016, both exports 
and imports grew at the rate of 5 per 
cent, starting a long-awaited recovery.

Growth rate of industrial sector is 
estimated to moderate to 5.2 per cent 
in 2016-17 from 7.4 per cent last iscal. 
Many new initiatives have been taken by 
the Government in the form of Make-
in-India, Invest India, Start Up India and 
e-biz Mission Mode Project. Such national 
e-governance plans are facilitating 
investment and ease of doing business in 
the country.

The GST will create a common Indian 
market, improve tax compliance and 
governance, boost investment and 
growth; it is also a bold new experiment 
in the governance of India’s cooperative 
federalism. To conclude, it can be said 
that we are on the correct mode 
of business.

Business Update
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PARTICULARS 2016-

17

2015-

16  *

2014-

15  *

2013-

14  *

2012-

13  *

2011-

12  *

2010-

11  *

2009-

10  *

2008-

09  *

Total Income 75524 66319 65863 59997 55573 49501 45925 38602 34628

EBIDTA 6763 5456 5191 4825 4549 4351 4053 3491 2871

Finance Cost 187 525 576 512 563 635 537 380 508

Depreciation & Amortisation 431 579 600 439 444 533 563 480 470

Proit before Tax & Exceptional 
Items

6144 4353 4015 3874 3542 3184 2952 2631 1893

Taxes 2073 1506 1365 1317 1149 990 981 894 643

Net proit 4071 2846 2651 2557 2393 2062 1972 1737 1250

Cash proit 4503 3425 3251 2996 2837 2594 2535 2217 1720

Dividend  per share 0.80 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

EPS 10.63 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Block 11766 8063 3875 3526 3659 3824 4898 4878 4470

Net Block 9843 6375 1461 1695 1945 2190 2403 2426 2411

Share Capital 766 761 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NET WORTH 16000 12298 11543 10195 9346 8564 8198 8281 8007

Average Net Worth 14149 11920 10869 9771 8955 8381 8240 8144 7825

Total Debts 3103 4033 55 112 94 268 486 635 542

Capital Employed 16347 12591 11573 10227 9399 8794 8923 9155 8783

Avg. Capital Employed 14469 12082 10900 9813 9097 8859 9039 8969 8432

Return on net worth 25.4% 23.1% 23.0% 25.1% 25.6% 24.1% 24.0% 21.0% 15.6%

Return on Capital Employed 43.8% 40.4% 42.1% 44.7% 45.1% 43.1% 38.6% 33.6% 28.5%

Debt Equity Ratio  ( times ) 0.19 0.33 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.08 0.07

Interest Cover ( times ) 36.10 10.40 9.02 9.42 8.08 6.85 7.55 9.19 5.65

Book Value per share  (in Rs.)                       41.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(Rs in Lakhs Except as stated)

( *) The igures belongs to erstwhile XPS Division of Transport Corporation of India Limited before demerger.

Key Financial Ratio

10
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REVENUE
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Moving towards an era of new possibilities 

Logistics as a Percentage of GDP 2015 nominal GDP at 
current USD

In Indian Modal Split is heavily 
skewed towards Road

Express industry in India, a fast growing industry segment. In 

India, it has come a long way from its origin in late 1990s to the 

modern form. Since then industry has invested in information 

technology, set up good processes and proprietary systems 

capable for handling large volumes. The Indian GDP is at $ 2.3 tn 

and 13% of that is spent on logistics sector which is  $ 300 bn. 

Road transportation contribute 60% out of that (180 Bn $) which 

is majorly under Unorganized regime (Approx 90%). Express 

industry is small but forms a signiicant segment of the logistics 

industry. TCIEXPRESS carries $ 7 bn worth Shipment every 

year and the opportunity to convert into premium segment 

of Express is humongous. The growth in current business 

segment and expansion of new industry verticals segments will 

be the demand drivers for the express industry, in addition to 

the increase in reach through expansion of network and new 

products.

As a labour intensive industry, the express industry is estimated 

to presently employ about 17.9 lakhs persons, directly and 

indirectly. Based on the growth estimates for the industry, the 

employee base of the industry, direct and indirect, is expected 

to grow to 27.2 lakhs by 2020-21.

$ 2,308 Bn

$ 300 Bn

$ 11,285 Bn

$ 2,031 Bn

$ 18,287 Bn

$ 1,554 Bn

13%

8%1% 2% 0.5%

4% 6% 3%

18%

9%

8.5%

60
%

R
oa

d

32
%

R
ai

l

8%
W

at
er

0.
1%

A
ir

5%

The express industry ofers an integrated shipment delivery 
services to its customers. The customer thus needs to deal with 
only one operator. Express services also provide visibility of the 
shipments to the customers through the tracking mechanism.

However, the operations of the express industry are complex, 
involving multiple activities and parties. The express industry is a 
fragmented industry with large number of players, estimated at 
about 2500. However, there has been considerable consolidation 
of the industry over the years and the large organized players, 
including government postal department, presently have about 
72% share of the industry revenue with the mid-size organized 
players estimated to have another 15% share while small size 
players have the residual market share.

The larger players have wide networks with presence in 
national and international locations. The medium size players 
have a regional focus with limited presence across other 
regions. The smaller players have much smaller networks, 
limited to few cities and towns. The larger players have made 
considerable investment in network and processes including 
information technology infrastructure and transport assets and 
are able to handle large volumes across multiple locations.

 Transportation    Admin/Others  Warehousing

Management Discussion & Analysis

12
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Future Aspects

EXIM and commodities will 
shift to Rail 

Development of dedicated rail freight 
corridors will promote shift of haulage 
of EXIM containerized cargo, and 
commodities by rail from road.

With various National Highways 
Development Project in action like the 
Golden Quadrilateral connecting four 
metropolises, the East-West Corridor 
joining Porbandar to Silchar, there will be 
faster movement of express on highways.

Source: http://www.inancialexpress.com/economy/
rs-10-trillion-umbrella-road-project-to-subsume-
national-highways-development-project/632637/

Fuel price reduction

A reduction in the cost of fuel has positive 
impacts across many diferent aspects of 
a business. Shipping costs for supplies, 
raw materials or inished products will 
likely witness freeing of capital for other 
expenses or permitting an increase in a 
company’s reserve fund. 

Express transportation sector is 
expected to grow 12-14%. The country’s 
express transportation sector is poised for 
accelerated growth, led by GDP revival, 
ramp up in transport infrastructure, 
e-commerce penetration and 
government initiatives like ‘Make in India.’ 
Thus making way for clearer roads and 
faster express transportation in India.

Digitally enabled and cloud-based 
solutions in the logistics industry will 
rearrange how the logistics business 
operates, rendering obsolete old business 
models. Asset light companies will prevail 
that use technology as their forefront 
in ofering customer solutions, and 
managing internal processes. Companies 
like TCIEXPRESS will ofer increasingly 
sophisticated shipping solutions, and 
making transportation possible on even 
handhelds. Digitization will transform 
how virtually every stakeholder in 
these linked businesses — original 
equipment manufacturers (OEMs), 
Express Transportation companies, and 
local delivery businesses — will operate. 
Disruption will be a challenge, but there 
is enough latent demand to fulil in the 
organised manner.

Few Other aspects which would 

positively impact Express transportation 

sector- 

Increased mechanisation use 
instead of manual labour

Lesser use of air mode

In the long run, there will be lesser 
dependency on the air mode in the 
express industry for transferring goods 
from one place to another. Infact, more 
stress will be given on transferring goods 
through rail and road. 

13
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GST

Rationalizing the  impact of taxes 
on Production, Distribution and 
Inventory management.
Would lead to faster movement of 
goods, increase consumption.
Consolidation of warehouses and 
emergence of point to point model
Increase in manufacturing hubs.
Positive impact for TCIEXPRESS

DFC/Diamond quadilateral

Creation of additional dedicated rail 
freight capacity.
Will reduce unit cost of transportation 
since movement would be from road to rail.
Increased bulk multi modal movement 

Will result in development of logistic 
Warehouses in the vicinity of Freight 
Corridor.
No impact on TCIEXPRESS.

E-commerce driven growth 
in consumption

With increased per capita disposable 
income, consumption driven sectors will 
grow.
Sectors like Fashion, Lifestyle, Telecom and 
consumable durables etc. will get a boost .
Positive for TCIEXPRESS.

Increased outsouring 
of Logistics

Growth in trend towards 
outsourcing of logistics in non 
traditional industries.
Bringing in more focus from 
Industry perspective.
Positive for TCIEXPRESS.

Impact on macro economic changes in India

14
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The road transport in India has emerged as a dominant part of the transport system of the country, it has come to occupy a pivotal 

position in the overall transportion system. Though India is a low-cost service provider, the logistics cost remains an alarming factor 

due to the regulatory and tax structure challenges system in the country. However, TCIEXPRESS has a positive outlook and is ready to 

overcome the challenges.  

Diesel Price Fluctuation

cost of operation and has been sporadic in last 
4 years.

To mitigate the impact, TCIEXPRESS has 
added DFS (Diesel fuel surcharge) in its 
contracts, both with vendors and customers.

3 4Lack of infrastructure

Infrastructure has remained a concern for 
Express Industry, be it cargo terminals at 
airports or road conditions.

Government of India has taken multiple 
initiatives so as reduce the gaps.

Delay in Inter State Check Posts

The inter-state movement of goods in India is 
subject to multiple taxes and clearances.

Implementation of GST is expected to 
streamline the processes and reduce a lot of 
these delays.

Unorganized local players

Unorganized local players have 
always been a threat to the industry.

Post GST, TCI EXPRESS might see 
some consolidation to happen.

Challenges vs Solutions

1 2
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Your Directors take immense pleasure in presenting their 9th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 

along with the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarized inancial highlights of the Company for the year under review along with previous year igures are depicted below:

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

During the year under review, pursuant to the Scheme of 

Arrangement between Transport Corporation of India Limited 

(TCI) and TCI Express Limited (Company) and their respective 

shareholders and creditors, the XPS division of TCI demerged 

and vested into the Company. The Hon’ble High Court of 

Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and the State 

of Andhra Pradesh sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement vide 

its order dated June 14, 2016 and the Scheme became efective 

from August 11, 2016. The appointed date under the Scheme 

was close of business hours of March 31, 2016. Pursuant to the 

Scheme, the above inancial results of the Company for the year 

ended March 31, 2017 are not comparable with the inancial 

results for the previous year ended March 31, 2016.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the inancial year ended March 31, 2017, your 

Company earned total income of Rs. 75,523.63 Lakhs as 

compared to Rs. 0.25 Lakhs in previous inancial year and 

made a proit before tax of Rs. 6,144.12 Lakhs compared 

to loss of Rs. 1.40 Lakhs in previous inancial year, and 

proit after tax of Rs. 4,071.32 Lakhs as compared to loss of

Rs. 1.40 Lakhs in previous inancial year.

DIVIDEND

The Board, in its meeting held on January 31, 2017, has 

declared an interim dividend of 40% (Re. 0.80 per equity 

share of Rs. 2/- each) which was paid to the shareholders in 

the month of February, 2017.

Further, the Board in its meeting held on May 23, 2017, has 

recommended a inal dividend of 40% (Re. 0.80 per equity 

share of Rs. 2/- each) for the inancial year ended on March 

Particulars    (Amount in  Lakhs)

2016-17 2015-16

Total Income 75,523.63 0.25

Proit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation, Taxation & Exceptional Item 6,762.84 (1.40)

Less: Interest (Net) 187.32 -

Less: Depreciation (Net) 431.40 -

Proit/(Loss) before Tax & Exceptional Item 6,144.12 (1.40)

Less: Exceptional Item - -

Proit/ (Loss) before Tax (PBT) 6,144.12 (1.40)

Less: Provision for Tax-Current 2,013.87 -

Deferred 58.93 -

Taxes for earlier years - -

Proit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT) 4,071.32 (1.40)

Proit/ (Loss) for the year 4,071.32 (1.40)

Directors’ Report

31, 2017. The proposal is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.  

The Final Dividend, if approved by the shareholders in the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, will be paid to those 

members whose names appear in the Register of Members 

and to those persons whose names appear as Beneicial 

owners as per the details to be furnished by National 

Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository 

Services (India) Ltd on the date of book closure.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

For Financial year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has 

transferred Rs. 2,500 Lakhs to General Reserve.

SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING OF  SHARES ON 
STOCK EXCHANGES

As on March 31, 2016, paid up share capital of the Company 

was Rs. 5,00,000/- divided into 50,000 equity shares of

Rs. 10/- each. In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, the said 

capital of Rs. 5,00,000/- has been extinguished and cancelled. 

Pursuant to the Scheme  of Arrangement, the Company has 

issued and allotted fully paid 3,82,88,725 equity shares of 

Rs. 2/- each in the ratio of 1:2 to the shareholders of Transport 

Corporation of India Limited on August 31, 2016. The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its letter dated 

December 6, 2016, has granted the necessary relaxation 

under Rule19(2)(b) of Securities Contracts (Regulation) 

Rules, 1957, for the listing of the aforesaid equity shares of 

the Company and consequently trading commenced with 

efect from December 15, 2016 on BSE Ltd. and National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN-2016

The shareholders of the Company in the 8th Annual General 

Meeting held on November 4, 2016, approved the Employee 

Stock Option Plan-2016. In terms of the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Share Based Employee 

Beneits) Regulations, 2014, the detail of Employee Stock 

Option Plan-2016 is hereunder:

S.

No

Particulars Disclosure

1 Date of Shareholder’s approval November 4, 2016

2 Total number of options approved under Employees 
Stock Option Plan 2016

957218

3 Vesting requirements Vesting period shall commence after 1 (One) year from the date of grant of Options 
and may extend upto 5 (Five) years from the date of grant in the manner prescribed 
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

4 Exercise price or pricing formula Under the Employee Stock Option Plan, the Exercise price of the Shares, will be 
the Market Price of the Shares one day before the date of the meeting of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee wherein the grants of options of that 
particular year will be approved. The Committee has a power to provide suitable 
discount or charge premium on such price as arrived above. 

5 Maximum term of Options granted The vesting of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan, will take 
place over a period of ive years from the date of grant

6 Sources of shares (Primary, Secondary or Combination) Primary

7 Variation in terms of Option N.A

8 Method used for accounting of ESOS (Intrinsic or fair 
value)

Fair value method

9 (a) Diference, if any, between employee compensation 
cost calculated using the intrinsic value of stock 
options and employee compensation cost calculated 
on the basis of fair value of stock options

N.A

   (b) Impact on the proits of the Company and the 
earnings per share(“EPS”)arising due to diference in 
the accounting treatment and for calculation of the 
employee compensation cost (i.e. diference of the fair 
value of stock options over the intrinsic value of the 
stock options)

N.A

10 Weighted average exercise price and weighted average 
fair value of options whose exercise price either equals 
or exceeds or is less than market price of the stock.

No options has been granted and exercised as on March 31, 2017

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has not granted any options to the employees in terms of Employee Stock 

Option Plan-2016.

SUBSIDIARY, HOLDING, JOINT VENTURE AND 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on March 31, 2017, the Company did not have any subsidiary 

or holding or joint venture or associate company as deined 

under Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

Board of Directors

The shareholders in the 8th Annual General Meeting held 

on November 4, 2016 has approved the appointment/

regularization of following Director(s):

appointed as Managing Director and Whole Time Director 

respectively, for a period of ive years, with efect from 

August 18, 2016.

as Non-Executive Non Independent Directors of the 

Company, whose oices are liable to retire by rotation.

Prashant Jain and Mrs. Manisha Agarwal were appointed 

as Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company, 

for a period of ive consecutive years, whose oices are not 

liable to retire by rotation.

Post last Annual General Meeting held on November 4, 2016, 

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal has resigned from the Directorship of 

the Company efective from January 31, 2017. Subsequent to 

resignation of Mrs. Manisha Agarwal, the Board of Directors 

has appointed Mrs. Taruna Singhi, as Additional Director 

in category of Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 

January 31, 2017. In terms of Section 161 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, she will hold oice up to the date of this Annual 
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General Meeting. The Company has received notice from a 

member proposing the candidature of Mrs. Taruna Singhi for 

appointment as Director. Accordingly, the requisite resolution 

for her appointment will be placed before the shareholders 

for their approval.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

thereunder, Mr. Vineet Agarwal, Director, retires by rotation at 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, ofers 

himself for re-appointment.

Brief resumes of the Directors being appointed/re-appointed, 

nature of their expertise in speciic functional areas, details of 

Directorship in other Companies, Membership / Chairmanship 

of Committees of the board and other details, as stipulated 

under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are forming part 

of the Annual Report.

The Independent Directors have submitted their respective 

declarations of Independence, as required pursuant to Section 

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 conirming that they meet 

the criteria of Independence speciied in the Act and the Rules 

made thereunder as also under Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclsoure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies 

Mr. Chander Agarwal, Managing Director, Mr. P. C. Sharma, 

Whole Time Director, Mr. Mukti Lal, Chief Financial Oicer and 

Mr. Vinay Gujral, Company Secretary.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

The details pertaining to separate meeting of Independent 

Directors, held during the year are provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS 
COMMITTEE AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation 

of its own performance, Board Committees and individual 

Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 

Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and guidance note issued by SEBI vide its circular dated 

January 5, 2017. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking 

inputs from the Directors on the basis of the criteria such 

as the structure of Board, meeting and functions of the 

Board, evaluation of the performance of the Management, 

Committees of the Board etc. The criteria for performance 

evaluation of the individual Directors includes aspects on 

qualiication, experience, knowledge, contribution to the 

Board and Committee meetings etc.

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, ive (5) Board Meetings were 

convened and held. The Details of the composition of the 

Board and its Meetings held, attendance of the Directors at 

such meetings and other relevant details are provided in the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of Annual Report. 

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the 

period prescribed under the Companies Act., 2013 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, 

to the best of their knowledge and ability, state the following:

That in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements 

for the year ended March 31, 2017, all the applicable 

Accounting Standards have been followed alongwith 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

That such accounting policies have been selected and 

applied consistently and judgment and estimates have 

been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 

a true and fair view of the state of afairs of the Company 

as at March 31, 2017 and of the proit of the Company for 

the year ended on that date;

That proper and suicient care has been taken for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

That the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared 

under the going concern assumption;

That proper internal inancial controls are in place and that the 

inancial controls are adequate and are operating efectively;

That proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws are in place and are 

adequate and operating efectively.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT AND CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee and CSR Committee 

of the Board of Directors and their meeting held, attendance 

of members at such meeting and other relevant information is 

provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of 

Annual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit 

Committee for approval. Omnibus approval is obtained 

for unforeseen related party transactions. Related Party 

Transactions entered including omnibus approval are audited 

by the Internal Auditor and a statement giving details of 

all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit 

Committee for review and approval on a quarterly basis.
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During the year under review, pursuant to SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Company has entered into material related party 

transactions, subject to the approval of shareholders in this 

Annual General Meeting. All transactions entered with Related 

Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis 

and in the ordinary course of business. 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related 

parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

in the prescribed format is attached herewith as Annexure A.

The policy on Related Party Transactions may be accessed 

on the Company’s website at the following link: http://www. 

tciexpress.in/pdf/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20 

Transactions.pdf

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHITSLE BLOWER POLICY

The details pertaining to Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy 

of the Company are provided in the Corporate Governance 

Report forming part of Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY

The Company has an efective internal control and risk 

mitigation system, which is constantly assessed and 

strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures. 

The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with 

its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The internal 

and operational audit is carried out by the Internal Audit 

Department headed by the Internal Auditor.

The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and 

efectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests 

improvements to strengthen the same. The Audit Committee, 

Statutory Auditors and the Operational Heads are periodically 

apprised of the internal audit indings and corrective actions 

taken. The Audit plays a key role in providing assurance to 

the Board of Directors. The signiicant audit observations and 

corrective actions taken by the management are presented to 

the Audit Committee. 

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal 

Auditor directly interacts with the Chairman and other 

members of the Audit Committee. The Company has adequate 

internal controls and processes in place with respect to inancial 

statements which provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of inancial reporting and the preparation of inancial 

statements. The processes and controls of Internal Audit are 

reviewed periodically. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has devised and implemented a mechanism 

for risk management. Your Company believes that managing 

risks helps in maximizing returns. The Company’s approach to 

addressing operational risks is comprehensive and includes 

periodic review of such risks and a framework for identifying 

and addressing the risks has been laid down by the Board 

of Directors. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 

periodically reviews the Risk Management framework, 

identiied risks with criticality and mitigations plans. 

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted 

any ixed deposits in terms of the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology 

absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as 

stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from 

time to time, is attached herewith as Annexure B.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return as on March 31, 2017 in the 

prescribed form, pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 is 

attached herewith as Annexure C.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company in the 7th Annual General 

Meeting had appointed M/s. R.S Agarwala & Co., Chartered 

a period of ive years to hold oice till the conclusion of Annual 

General Meeting to be held in calendar year 2020, subject to 

ratiication by the shareholders in every Annual General Meeting. 

M/s. R.S Agarwala & Co., Statutory Auditors have expressed their 

willingness and conirmed their eligibility to the efect that their 

re-appointment, if made, would be with in the prescribed limits 

under the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualiied 

for re-appointment/ratiication. Members are requested to ratify 

the appointment and ix their remuneration.

There are no qualiications or observations or other remarks 

of the Auditors in the Report issued by them for the inancial 

year 2016-17 which call for any explanation from the Board of 

Directors.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had 

Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company 

for the inancial year 2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report 

submitted by Secretarial Auditor in the prescribed form is 

attached herewith as Annexure D.

There are no qualiications or observations or other remarks of 

the Secretarial Auditors in the Report issued by them for the 
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inancial year 2016-17 which call for any explanation from the 

Board of Directors.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS

There are no material/signiicant orders passed against the 

company by the regulators as on March 31, 2017. Details of 

litigation on tax matters are disclosed in the inancial statement.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

There were no Loans, Guarantees and Investments made by 

the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, the provisions of section 135 

read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 were not 

applicable on the Company. Accordingly, there was no amount 

required to be spent on Corporate Social Responsibility. 

Further, the Board has duly constituted a CSR committee and 

also framed a CSR policy in conformity with the provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to CSR expenditure will apply 

to the Company efective from i nancial ye ar 20 17-18. Th e 

CSR policy of the Company can be accessed at http://www. 

tciexpress.in/pdf/CSR%20Policy.pdf

REMUNERATION POLICY AND DISCLOSURE

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the 

Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and 

appointment of Board Members. The details of this policy are 

explained in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of 

Annual Report

The information as required under the provisions of Section 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time is attached 

herewith as Annexure E.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Equity Shares of the Company got listed and permitted 

to trade on BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited w.e.f December 15, 2016. Hence, compliance with 

the provisions of Corporate Governance norms as speciied 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is applicable to the Company from the 

date of listing i.e December 15, 2016. Accordingly, a separate 

Corporate Governance compliance report as stipulated 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 alongwith the required Certiicate from the 

Statutory Auditors regarding compliance with the conditions 

of Corporate Governance, during the inancial year ended 

March 31, 2017 are forming part of Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT

A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

as required under SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in a separate 

section, forming part of Annual Report.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

In terms of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, it is mandatory 

to disclose status of sexual harassment related complaints in 

the Annual Report. For protection against sexual harassment, 

your Company has formed a Complaint Committee to which 

employees can submit their complaints. There were no such 

complaints received during the year or pending for redressal as 

on March 31, 2017. 

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence 

and dedication shown by its employees in all areas of its 

business. The Company has a structured induction process 

and management development programs to upgrade skills 

of employees. The Company is committed towards nurturing, 

enhancing and retaining talent through superior Learning & 

Organizational Development. This is a part of corporate HR 

function and is a critical pillar to support the organization’s 

growth and its sustainability in the long run.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Directors’ Report and in Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s 

objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions 

may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of 

applicable Securities Laws and regulations. Actual results could 

difer materially from those expressed or implied. 
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Date:  23.05.2017 Chairman



21

Annual Report 2016-17

Annexure-A

Disclosure of particulars of Contracts/Arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section 

(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

S.

No

Particulars Details

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any Nil

5 Justiication for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

6 Date of approval by the Board

7 Amount paid as advances, if any

8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under irst proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Name of the Related Party Nature of 

contracts/

arrangements/

transactions

Duration of 

contracts/

arrangements/

transactions

Salient terms of 

the contracts/

arrangements/

transactions 

Amount of 

transaction 

in Rs.

Date of 

approval by 

the Board

Amount 

paid as 

advance, 

if any

Transport Corporation of India Limited Availing/Rendering 

of Services and 

Rental Transactions

Ongoing

transactions

The Transactions 

entered as per 

commercial 

terms in line 

with business 

practices and 

in the Ordinary 

Course of 

Business and at 

Arm’s Length 

basis.

5,46,62,219

May 23, 2017 Nil

TCI Developers Limited 82,22,100

Transystem Logistics International 

Pvt. Ltd

Availing/ 

Rendering of 

Services

29,57,158

TCI Institute of Logistics 2,37,100

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India 

Ltd

Rental Transactions

8,40,000

TCI Properties (West) Limited 4,21,200

XPS Cargo Services Ltd 2,67,72,300

TCI Properties (Delhi) 1,02,12,000

TCI Warehousing (MH) 4,53,600

TCI Foundation 7,32,600

TCI Properties (Guj) 4,40,000

TCI India Limited Purchase of Goods 3,48,211
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Particulars pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the 

Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND RESEARCH & 
DEVELOPMENT
Considering the nature of business of the Company, energy 

does not form a signiicant portion of the cost for the Company 

yet wherever possible and feasible, continues eforts are being 

put for conservation of energy and minimizing power cost.

Some of the measures taken by the Company in this direction 

are:

Continuous process to convert diesel/petrol vehicle from 

road while replacing with CNG for pollution free/eco- 

friendly operations.

On-going process to replace the Tube Lights by energy 

eicient LED Lights in sorting centers for reducing power 

consumption

Sorting centers are being designed in such a manner 

to use maximum sunlight in day time thus reduction in 

electricity consumption.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND 
INNOVATION

At TCI Express, our constant endeavor is to understand 

customer requirements in detail and deliver it with value 

addition using latest technology. Some of our other innovative 

technological applications compared to most others in the 

industry have been given hereunder:

Electronic Data Interchange: Secure Integration of our in-

house ERP with customers ERP for better Pickup arrangements, 

service deliverables and tracking of service level agreements.

Barcode Scanning: Use of Packet Level barcode scanning 

during movement at each leg to ensure complete system 

control, track and error free logistics.

Mobility: Mobile App development for internal users for 

consignment pickup & delivery status update, POD Image 

upload and Pincode enquiry to ensure real time consignment 

tracking, faster operations and accurate data availability. 

Mobile App development for external customers with options 

of consignment pickup request, consignment tracking, branch 

locator, pincode enquiry and freight calculator to provide all 

required options in his Mobile and enhance the customer 

experience.

Auto MIS: A customized MIS system in which daily MIS is 

sent to the customers with complete information about their 

dealings with the Company, facilitating easy and reliable  

reconciliation, and expedited settlement of bills.

Auto Alert: Customized auto alert system in which, the 

Company send SMS and emails to the customers on 

consignment booking, consignment arrival, consignment out 

for delivery and consignment delivery.

Auto Billing: Auto email goes to the selected customers on 

each billing with POD image link so that Bill proceeds collection 

becomes faster and more eicient.

Digitization of receipts and payment: As a part of digitization 

and promoting the idea of e-payment, the Company is 

accepting its receipts and payment through electronic mode.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inlows during 

the year and the foreign exchange outgo during the year in 

terms of actual outlows is hereunder:

(Amount In Rs.)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Foreign Exchange Outgo 1,17,44,726 -

Foreign Exchange Earnings - -
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Annexure-C

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN (as on inancial year ended on 31st March, 2017)

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 & rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I. CIN U62200TG2008PLC061781

II. Registration Date 10.11.2008

III. Name of the Company TCI Express Limited (formerly TCI Properties (Pune) Limited)

IV. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non- Government Company 

V. Address of the Registered oice & contact details Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 to 273, 3rd Floor, Ashoka Bhoopal Chambers,

S.P. Road, Secunderabad- 500003 (Telangana) Tel.: +91 40-27840104

VI. Whether listed company Yes (Listed w.e.f December 15, 2016)

VII. Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar 

& Transfer Agent, if any.

Nanakramguda, Hyderabad- 500 032. Phone: 040- 67161524.

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the  Product /service % to total turnover of the company

1 Cargo handling incidental to land, water & air transport 52241, 52242 and 52243 100%

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/Associate % of Shares held Applicable Section

N.A

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(i) Category wise shareholding 

Category 

Code

Category of 

Shareholders

No. of Shares at the beginning of the 

year 01.04.2016

No. of Shares at the end of the year 31.03.2017 % age 

Change 

during

the

year

Demat Physical Total % of 

total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

total 

shares

   (I)    (II)    (III)    (IV)      (V)      (VI)      (VII)      (VIII)      (IX)   (X)   (XI)

(A) Promoter & Promoter 

Group

Please 

refer 

note 2 

below

(1) Indian

(a) Individual /HUF - 60 (note 1) 60 0.12 82,53,013 - 82,53,013 21.55

(b) Central Government/
State Government(s)

 -  -  -  - - - -

(c) Bodies Corporate 49,940 49,940 99.88 1,70,52,452 - 1,70,52,452 44.54

(d) Financial Institutions / 
Banks

 -  -  -  - -

(e) Others  -  -  -  - -

Sub-Total A(1)  : 50,000 50,000 100.00 2,53,05,465 - 2,53,05,465 66.09

(2) Foreign

(a) Individuals (NRIs/
Foreign Individuals)

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(b) Bodies Corporate  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(c) Institutions   -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(d) Qualiied Foreign 
Investor

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(e) Others   -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Sub-Total A(2)  :  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Total A=A(1)+A(2)  - 50,000 50,000 100.00 2,53,05,465 - 2,53,05,465 66.09
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Category 

Code

Category of 

Shareholders

No. of Shares at the beginning of the 

year 01.04.2016

No. of Shares at the end of the year 31.03.2017 % age 

Change 

during

the

year

Demat Physical Total % of 

total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

total 

shares

(B) Public Shareholding

Please 

refer 

note 2 

below

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds /UTI   -  -  -  - 27,80,540 250 27,80,790 7.26

(b) Financial Institutions /
Banks

 -  -  -  - - 10,338 10,338 0.03

(c) Central Government / 
State Government(s)

 -  -  -  - - - - -

(d) Venture Capital Funds  -  -  -  - - - - -

(e) Insurance Companies   -  -  -  - - - - -

(f ) Foreign Institutional 
Investors 

 -  -  -  - 3,188 2,759 5,947 0.02

(g) Foreign Venture Capital 
Investors 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - -

(h) Qualiied Foreign 
Investor

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - -

Sub-Total B(1)  :  - - - - 27,83,728 13,347 27,97,075 7.31

(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate  - - - - 12,39,213 23,930 12,63,143 3.30

(b) Individuals

(i) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs.2 lakh

 - - - - 43,18,667 10,52,786 53,71,453 14.03

(ii) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs.2 lakh

 -  - - - 814,359 - 8,14,359 2.13

(c) Others

Foreign Portfolio 
Investors

- - - - 7,27,968 - 7,27,968 1.90

Non Resident Indian  - - - - 3,64,025 1,22,763 4,86,788 1.27

Non Resident Indian 
Non Repatriable

- - - 4,89,892 - 4,89,892 1.28

Overseas Corporate 
Bodies

- - - - - 10,15,482 10,15,482 2.65

Trusts  - - - - 17,100 - 17,100 0.04

Sub-Total B(2) :  - - - - 79,71,224 22,14,961 1,01,86,185 26.60

Total B=B(1)+B(2)  :  - - - - 1,07,54,952 22,28,308 129,83,260 33.91

Total (A+B)   : 50,000 50,000 100.00 - 3,60,60,417 22,28,308 3,82,88,725 100

(C) Shares held by 

custodians, against 

which Depository 

Receipts have been 

issued

(1) Promoter and 
Promoter Group

 -  -  -  -  -  - -

(2) Public  -  -  -  -  -  - -

GRAND TOTAL 

(A+B+C) :

50,000 50,000 100.00 3,60,60,417 22,28,308 3,82,88,725 100

Note:

1. Shares held as Nominees of Transport Corporation of India Limited.
2. As on March 31, 2016, paid up share capital of the Company was Rs. 5,00,000 divided into 50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. In terms of the Scheme

of Arrangement between Transport Corporation of India Limited and TCI Express Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“the Scheme”) 
approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and the State of Andhra Pradesh, vide its order dated June 14, 
2016, the said capital of Rs. 5,00,000/- was extinguished and cancelled and pursuant to the Scheme, 3,82,88,725 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each were allotted 
to the equity shareholders of Transport Corporation of India Limited on August 31, 2016. Since, the new Share Capital did not exist at the beginning of the 
inancial year and was entirely issued and allotted during the inancial year, accordingly “% changes during the Year” was 100%.
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S

No.

Name of Promoters Shareholding at the beginning

of the year 01.04.2016

Shareholding at the end

of the year 31.03.2017

% age 

change

in share-

holding

during

the year

No. of 

shares

% of 

total 

shares of 

the

company

% of shares 

pledged

encumbered 

to total

shares

No. of 

shares

% of 

total 

shares of 

the

company

% of shares 

pledged

encumbered 

to total

shares

1 M/s. Transport Corporation of India Ltd 49,940 99.88 - - - -

Please 

refer 

note 

below**

2 Mr. D.P. Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - - -

3 Mr. Chander Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - - -

4 Mr. Vineet Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - - -

5 10 0.02 - - - -

6 10 0.02 - - - -

7 10 0.02 - - - -

8 M/s. Bhoruka Finance Corporation 
of India Ltd

- - - 79,52,339 20.77 -

9 M/s. Bhoruka International (P) Ltd - - - 52,80,877 13.79 -

10 M/s. Dharmpal  Agarwal-TCI Trading  - - - 24,87,497 6.50 -

11 M/s. TCI India Ltd. - - - 20,22,782 5.28 -

12 M/s. TCI Global Logistics Ltd. - - - 11,53,455 3.01 -

13 Mr. Chander Agarwal - - - 10,52,131 2.75 -

14 M/s. Dharm Pal Agarwal- HUF - - - 10,19,878 2.66 -

15 Mr. Vineet Agarwal - - - 9,91,467 2.59 -

16 Mrs. Priyanka Agarwal - - - 9,72,604 2.54 -

17 Mrs. Urmila Agarwal - - - 9,25,295 2.42 -

18 M/s. XPS Cargo Services Ltd. - - - 4,86,427 1.27 -

19 Mr. Dharmpal Agarwal - - - 4,19,314 1.10 -

20 Mrs. Chandrima Agarwal - - - 3,70,528 0.97 -

21 M/s. TCI Exim (P) Ltd. - - - 1,56,572 0.41 -

22 M/s. Vineet & Sons -HUF - - - 10,382 0.03 -

23 Master Vihaan Agarwal           - - - 3,500 0.01 -

24 Master Nav Agarwal - - 417 0.00 -

Total 50,000 100.00 - 2,53,05,465 66.09 -

* Shares held as nominee of Transport Corporation of India Limited and cancelled, pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement as mentioned under note 2 to clause IV (i).
** please refer note 2 to clause IV (i).

(iii) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

S

No.

Name of Promoter Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year 01.04.2016

Cumulative 

Shareholding during the 

year 31.03.2017

Date wise increase / decrease in promoter

shareholding during the year

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

Date of issue 

of shares/ 

Cancellation-

pursuant to

Scheme of

Arrange-

ment**

No. of

shares 

disposed

of/

Cancelled**

No. of 

shares

acquired/

issued

as per

Scheme of

Arrange-

ment**

No. of shares 

at the end of 

the year

1 M/s. Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd

49,940 99.88 - - 31.08.2016 49,940 - -

2 Mr. D.P. Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -

3 Mr. Chander Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -

4 Mr. Vineet Agarwal* 10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -

5 10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -

6
Baranwal*

10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -

7
Agarwal*

10 0.02 - - 31.08.2016 10 - -
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S

No.

Name of Promoter Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year 01.04.2016

Cumulative 

Shareholding during the 

year 31.03.2017

Date wise increase / decrease in promoter

shareholding during the year

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

Date of issue 

of shares/ 

Cancellation-

pursuant to

Scheme of

Arrange-

ment**

No. of

shares 

disposed

of/

Cancelled**

No. of 

shares

acquired/

issued

as per

Scheme of

Arrange-

ment**

No. of shares 

at the end of 

the year

8 M/s. Bhoruka Finance 
Corporation of India Ltd.

- - 79,52,339 20.77 31.08.2016 - 79,52,339 79,52,339

9 M/s. Bhoruka International 
(P) Ltd 

- - 52,80,877 13.79 31.08.2016 - 52,80,877 52,80,877

10 M/s. Dharmpal Agarwal-
TCI Trading  

- - 24,87,497 6.50 31.08.2016 - 24,87,497 24,87,497

11 M/s. TCI India Ltd. - - 20,22,782 5.28 31.08.2016 - 20,22,782 20,22,782

12 M/s. TCI Global Logistics 
Ltd.

- - 11,53,455 3.01 31.08.2016 - 11,53,455 11,53,455

13 Mr. Chander Agarwal - - 10,52,131 2.75 31.08.2016 - 10,52,131 10,52,131

14 M/s. Dharam Pal Agarwal- 
HUF

- - 10,19,878 2.66 31.08.2016 - 10,19,878 10,19,878

15 Mr. Vineet Agarwal - - 9,91,467 2.59 31.08.2016 - 9,91,467 9,91,467

16 Mrs. Priyanka Agarwal - - 9,72,604 2.54 31.08.2016 - 9,72,604 9,72,604

17 Mrs. Urmila Agarwal - - 9,25,295 2.42 31.08.2016 - 9,25,295 9,25,295

18 M/s. XPS Cargo Services 
Ltd.

- - 4,86,427 1.27 31.08.2016 - 4,86,427 4,86,427

19 Mr. Dharmpal Agarwal - - 4,19,314 1.10 31.08.2016 - 4,14,314 4,19,314

15.12.2016*** - 5,000

20 Mrs. Chandrima Agarwal - - 3,70,528 0.97 31.08.2016 - 3,70,528 3,70,528

21 M/s. TCI Exim (P) Ltd. - - 1,56,572 0.41 31.08.2016 - 1,56,572 1,56,572

22 M/s. Vineet & Sons -HUF - - 10,382 0.03 31.08.2016 - 10,382 10,382

23 Master Vihaan Agarwal           - - 3,500 0.01 31.08.2016 - 3,500 3,500

24 Master Nav Agarwal - - 417 0.00 31.08.2016 - 417 417

Total 50,000 100.00 2,53,05,465 66.09 2,53,05,465

*Shares held as nominees of Transport Corporation of India Limited
** please refer note 2 to clause IV (i).
*** 5000 Equity Shares acquired from open market through Stock Exchange.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

S.

No

Name of 

Shareholder

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

01.04.2016

Cumulative 

shareholding during 

the year 31.03.2017

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding of top ten 

shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holder 

of GDRs & ADRs) during the year

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

Date No of 
shares 

allotted/ 

bought 

during the 

year

No of 

shares 

Sold 

during the 

year

No. of 

shares at 

the end of

the year

%age

1 M/s. IDFC Premier 
Equity Fund

- -
13,91,562 3.63 31.08.2016 13,58,042 - 13,91,562 3.63

16.12.2016 33,520 -

2 M/s. ARCEE Holdings 
Ltd

- - 10,15,482 2.65 31.08.2016 10,15,482 - 10,15,482 2.65

3 M/s. Canara Robeco 
Mutual Fund A/c 
Canara Robeco 
Emergi

- -

9,81,370 2.56 31.08.2016 6,29,382 - 9,81,370 2.56

03.03.2017 1,91,000 -

10.03.2017 22,047 -

17.03.2017 1,02,636 -

24.03.2017 36,305 -
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S.

No

Name of 

Shareholder

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

01.04.2016

Cumulative 

shareholding during 

the year 31.03.2017

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding of top ten 

shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holder 

of GDRs & ADRs) during the year

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of 

the

Company

Date No of 
shares 

allotted/ 

bought 

during the 

year

No of 

shares 

Sold 

during the 

year

No. of 

shares at 

the end of

the year

%age

4 Ms. Sangeeta Nirmal 
Bang

- - 4,33,960 1.13 31.08.2016 4,33,960 - 4,33,960 1.13

5 Ms. Sushma 
Chamaria

- -
3,37,332 0.88 31.08.2016 3,37,332 - 3,37,332 0.88

6 M/s. Padmavati 
Properties & Trusts 
Pvt. Ltd

- -
2,53,716 0.66 31.08.2016 2,53,716 - 2,53,716 0.66

7 M/s. Principal 
Trustee Co., Pvt. Ltd. 
– Principal Mutual

- - 2,37,860 0.62 31.08.2016 75,000 - 2,37,860 0.62

23.12.2016 98,625 -

30.12.2016 40,235 -

06.01.2017 9,000 -

20.01.2017 3,000 -

10.03.2017 3,000 -

17.03.2017 9,000 -

8 M/s. New Horizon 
Opportunities 
Master Fund

- -
2,36,500 0.62 31.08.2016 2,36,500 - 2,36,500 0.62

9 M/s. AVIVA Life 
Insurance Company 
India Limited

- - 2,31,681 0.61 31.08.2016 2,33,456 - 2,31,681 0.61

03.02.2017 - 94

10.03.2017 - 223

31.03.2017 - 1,458

10 M/s. TATA 
Investment 
Corporation Ltd.

- -
1,70,064 0.44 31.08.2016 1,70,064 - 1,70,064 0.44

Note: The Company has allotted Equity Shares as on August 31, 2016, pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement.

(v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

S.

No

Name of

Director/KMP

As at the beginning of 

the year 01.04.2016

As at the end of the 

year 31.03.2017

Date wise increase / decrease in Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnelshareholding during the year

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares 

of the 

Company

Date No. of Shares 

acquired 

pursuant to 

Scheme of 

Arrangement

No. of 

shares 

disposed

of

No. of 

shares at 

the end 

of the 

year

%age

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal1 10 0.02 419,314 1.10
31.08.2016 4,14,3142 105

4,19,314 1.10
15.12.2016 5,0003 -

2
Mr. Chander 
Agarwal1

10 0.02 1052,131 2.75 31.08.2016 10,52,1312 105 10,52,131 2.75

3 Mr. Vineet Agarwal1 10 0.02 9,91,467 2.59 31.08.2016 9,91,4672 105 9,91,467 2.59

4 Mr. P. C. Sharma4 - - 40,250 0.10 31.08.2016 40,250 - 40,250 0.10

5 Mr. Mukti Lal (CF0)4 - - 6,250 0.01 31.08.2016 6,250 - 6,250 0.01

1. Shares held as nominee of Transport Corporation of India Limited.
2. Equity Shares allotted pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement.
3. Equity Shares acquired from open market through Stock Exchange.
4. Mr. P. C. Sharma and Mr. Mukti Lal were appointed Whole Time Director and CFO respectively w.e.f August 18, 2016.
5. Please refer note 2 to clause IV (i).

Note:
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

(Amount in Rs)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Particulars Secured Loans

 excluding deposits

Unsecured 

Loans

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebteness at the beginning of the inancial year

i) Principal Amount 40,80,60,792 - - 40,80,60,792

ii) Interest due but not paid -- - - --

iii) Interest accrued but not due 70,848 - - 70,848

Total (i+ii+iii) 40,81,31,640 40,81,31,640

Change in Indebtedness during the inancial year

Additions 55,80,000 60,00,00,000 - 60,55,80,000

Reduction 29,74,99,777 40,00,00,000 - 69,74,99,777

Net Change (29,19,19,777) 20,00,00,000 (9,19,19,777)

Indebtedness at the end of the inancial year

i) Principal Amount 11,61,41,015 20,00,00,000 - 31,61,41,015

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 35,480 - - 35,480

Total (i+ii+iii) 11,61,76,495 20,00,00,000 - 31,61,76,495

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and or Manager

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars of Remuneration 
Mr. Chander Agarwal 

(Managing Director)*

Mr. P. C. Sharma

(Whole Time Director)*
 Total 

Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income 
Tax. 1961. 

99,43,548 44,33,710 1,43,77,258

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 83,57,730 32,23,018 1,15,80,748

(c ) Proits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

- - -

Stock option - - -

Sweat Equity - - -

Commission as % of proit 60,00,000 - 60,00,000

Others - - -

Total 2,43,01,278 76,56,728 319,58,006

Ceiling as per the Act
Rs. 6,48,16,992(10% of the net proits of the Company as 

computed under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

*Mr. Chander Agarwal and Mr. P. C. Sharma were appointed as Managing Director and Whole Time Director respectively w.e.f August 18, 2016 (for the part of 
inancial year 2016-17). Accordingly the remuneration shown above is from the date of their appointment in respective capacity.

B. Remuneration to other Directors

I. Independent Directors

(Amount in Rs)

S. No Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Murali 

Krishna 

Chevuturi*

Mr. Ashok 

Kumar 

Ladha*

Mr. Prashant 

Jain*

Mrs. Manisha 

Agarwal*

Mrs. Taruna 

Singhi**

Total 

(a) Fee for attending Board/
Committee meetings

70,000 70,000 - 30,000 - 1,70,000

(b) Commissions 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000 - 3,00,000 12,00,000

Total (I) 3,70,000 3,70,000 3,00,000 30,000 3,00,000 13,70,000

w.e.f August 18, 2016.
** Mrs. Manisha Agarwal has resigned and Mrs. Taruna Singhi has appointed as Additional Director in category of Non-Executive Independent w.e.f January 31, 2017

Note: Mr. Prashant Jain, voluntarily did not accept the sitting fee during inancial year 2016-17.
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II. Non-Executive Non Independent Directors

(Amount in Rs)

S. No Particulars of Remuneration Mr. D.P. Agarwal Mr. Vineet Agarwal Total 

(a) Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings - - -

(b) Commission 3,00,000 3,00,000 6,00,000

Total (II) 3,00,000 3,00,000 6,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 7,12,98,691(11% of the net proits of the Company as computed 

under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note: Mr. D.P. Agarwal and Mr. Vineet Agarwal, voluntarily did not accept the sitting fee during inancial year 2016-17.

C. Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel/Other than MD/Manager/WTD

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars of Remuneration
Mr. Mukti Lal

(CFO)*

Mr. Vinay Gujral 

(Company Secretary)*
Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income 
Tax. 1961.

11,17,742 2,57,081 13,74,823

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 6,88,889 2,68,209 9,57,098

(c ) Proits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -

Stock option - - -

Sweat Equity - - -

Commission as % of proit - - -

Others - - -

Total 18,06,631 5,25,290 23,31,921

*Mr. Mukti Lal and Mr. Vinay Gujral were appointed as Chief Financial Oicer and Company Secretary respectively w.e.f August 18, 2016 for the part of inancial 
year 2016-17, accordingly, the remuneration shown above is from the date of their respective appointment. 

VII. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Ofences

No penalties/punishment/compounding of ofences were levied under Companies Act, 2013.
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Annexure D
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members, 

TCI Express Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by TCI Express Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our veriication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by 

the Company as speciied in Annexure I and also the information provided by the Company, its oicers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the period 

covered by our audit, that is to say, from April 01, 2016 to March 31, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as “Audit Period”), complied with 

the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by the Company for 

the Audit Period according to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct

Investment;

5.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing

Regulations”);

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding

the Companies Act and dealing with client;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

6.   Laws speciically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identiied by the management, that is to say:

a. The Indian Carriage of Goods by Road Act, 2007;

b. Motor Vehicles Act, 1988.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

a. Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

Management Responsibility:
1.  Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit;

2.  We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contents of the secretarial records. The veriication was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are relected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the  processes  and  practices,  we  followed  provide  a  reasonable  basis for our opinion;

3. We have not veriied the correctness and appropriateness of inancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company;

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation

and happening of events etc;

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of

management. Our examination was limited to the veriication of procedure on test basis;

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the eicacy or efectiveness

with which the management has conducted the afairs of the Company.
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We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the Period under 

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 

seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clariications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is caried through while the dissenting members’ views, were not required to be captured and recorded as part 

of the minutes as there are no instance. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 

of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has not incurred any speciic event that can have a major bearing 

on the company’s afairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., except as follows:

(i) Allotment of shares pursuant to scheme of arrangement

 During the Audit Period, the Company has allotted 3,82,88,725 equity shares in the ratio of 1:2 to the equity shareholders of 

Transport Corporation of India Limited pursuant to the scheme of arrangement between the Company, Transport Corporation 

of India Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors and the said shares were listed on BSE and NSE w.e.f December 

15, 2016

(ii) Increase in borrowing limits under section 180(1)(c)

 During the Audit Period, the Company has passed the special resolution under Section 180(1)(c) in the Annual General meeting 

held on November 04, 2016 authorizing the Board of Directors to borrow money, the aggregate outstanding of which should 

not exceed Rs. 300 crores at any given time. 

(iii) Creation of security on the properties of the company under section 180(1)(a)

 During the Audit Period, special resolution in terms of section 180 (1) (a) was passed on November 04, 2016 to enable the 

company to create mortgage/charge/hypothecation etc. on the properties/ assets of the Company, as per details as provided 

in the resolution.

For M/s Vinod Kothari & Company

Company Secretaries in Practice

Vinita Nair

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No: A31669

Date: 23.05.2017 CP No.: 11902

Annexure I
LIST OF DOCUMENTS

1. Corporate Matters

1.1  Minutes books of the following meetings were 

provided in original

1.1.1 Board Meeting;

1.1.2 Audit Committee;

1.1.3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

1.1.4 Stakeholders Relationship Committee;

1.1.5 General Meeting;

1.2 Agenda papers for Board Meeting along with Notice; 

1.3 Annual Report for the Financial year 2015-2016;

1.4 Memorandum and Articles of Association;

1.5 Disclosures under Act and Listing Regulations; 

1.6 Policies framed under Act  and Listing Regulations;

1.7 Employees Stock Options Plan;

1.8  Documents pertaining to Listing Agreement/ Listing 

Regulations compliance;

1.9  Documents pertaining to proof of payment of 

Dividend;

1.10 Register maintained under Act;

1.11 Forms and returns iled with the ROC & RBI;

1.12 Checklists duly illed for speciic laws;

1.13  Documents under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015;

1.14  Disclosures under SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.
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Annexure E
Statement under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

I. Remuneration details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Name of the Director Designation
% increase in remuneration 

over last year

Ratio of Remuneration 

of Directors with Median 

Remuneration of employees

a) Executive Directors

Mr. Chander Agarwal Managing Director
N.A*

136.69

Mr. P. C. Sharma Whole Time Director 43.06

b) Non-Executive Directors

Mr. D.P Agarwal**
Chairman and
Non-Executive Director N.A

1.68

Mr. Vineet Agarwal** Non-Executive Director 1.68

Independent Director

N.A*

2.08

Independent Director 2.08

Mr. Prashant Jain Independent Director 1.68

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal*** Independent Director 0.16

Mrs. Taruna Singhi*** Independent Director 1.68

c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

Mr. Mukti Lal  CFO
N.A*

N.A

Mr. Vinay Gujral Company Secretary N.A

*Not Applicable, since they were appointed during inancial year 2016-17.

** Mr. D.P. Agarwal and Mr. Vineet Agarwal were appointed during inancial year 2015-16, however they did not receive any remuneration during 2015-16.

***Mrs. Manisha Agarwal has resigned from the directorship and Mrs. Taruna Singhi has appointed Additional Director in category of Independent Director 
w.e.f January 31, 2017.

II. Total employees on the payroll of the Company:  2224

III.  Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees during FY 2016-17 and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel Vis a Vis other employees: During the year, by virtue of Scheme of Arrangement between Transport

Corporation of India Limited and TCI Express Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors, the

employees of XPS- Division of Transport Corporation of India Limited has been transferred to the Company. The 

average percentile increase in the salary of employees (XPS division) other than management personnel was

12.40% as against 11.69% average percentile increase in the salary of managerial remuneration (XPS division).

The average increase every year is an outcome of the Company’s market competitiveness, salary benchmark

survey, inlation and talent retention.

IV.  Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is

other Employees.

V.  The list of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year including the details of remuneration 

of employees who, if employed throughout the year, were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less than 

Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum.

Sl. 

No.

Name Designation Remuneration 

(In Rs.)

Qualiication/

Experience 

(in years)

Date of 

commencement 

of employment

Age 

(In 

years)

Last employment No. of 

Equity 

Shares

1 Mr. Chander 
Agarwal*

Managing 
Director

2,43,01,278 B.Sc/15 years 18.08.2016 38 Joint Managing 
Director- Transport 
Corporation of India 
Ltd

10,52,131

2 Mr. P. C. Sharma** Whole Time 
Director

1,21,65,755 B.Com/33 years 01.04.2016 56 CEO of erstwhile 
TCI-XPS a division of 
Transport Corporation 
of India Ltd

40,250
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Sl. 

No.

Name Designation Remuneration 

(In Rs.)

Qualiication/

Experience 

(in years)

Date of 

commencement 

of employment

Age 

(In 

years)

Last employment No. of 

Equity 

Shares

3 Mr. S. Narayan 
Das***

HOD-ECOM 29,16,517 S.SC/38 years 01.04.2016 58 Regional Manager in 
erstwhile TCI-XPS a 
division of Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd

8,650

4 Mr. Mukti Lal** Chief Financial 
Oicer

28,37,869 Chartered 
Accountant/ 
13 years

01.04.2016 39 CFO of erstwhile 
TCI-XPS a division of 
Transport Corporation 
of India Ltd

6,250

5 Mr. Manish 
Jain***

National 
Head- Sales & 
Marketing

24,32,207 Management 
Graduate/
21 years

01.04.2016 41 National Head- Sales & 
Marketing in erstwhile 
TCI-XPS a division of 
Transport Corporation 
of India Ltd

-

6 Mr. L. Murali Regional Head 21,58,667 H.SC/33 years 01.04.2016 54 Regional Manager in 
erstwhile TCI-XPS a 
division of Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd

3,500

7 Mr. Amresh 
Mishra***

HOD-Human 
Resource

19,70,078 M.B.A/24 years 01.04.2016 43 GM-T&D in Transport 
Corporation of India 
Ltd

--

8 Mr. Arun 
Chaturvedi***

AVP-OPS 18,44,415 B.SC/24 years 01.04.2016 48

Regional Manager in 
erstwhile TCI-XPS a 
division of Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd

2,250

9 Mr. Noratmal 
Sarva***

Regional Head 17,90,349 H.SC/31 years 01.04.2016 52 2,500

10 Mr. Rambali Singh 
Yadav***

Regional Head 17,14,465 H.SC/33 years 01.04.2016 54 2,925

*The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Chander Agarwal as Managing Director w.e.f August 18, 2016.

**By virtue of Scheme of Arrangement between Transport Corporation of India Limited (Demerged Company) and TCI Express Limited (Resulting Company),
Mr. P. C. Sharma and Mr. Mukti Lal who was working as CEO and CFO, respectively of the erstwhile XPS Division, has been transferred to TCI Express Limited. Further, 
the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. P. C. Sharma and Mr. Mukti Lal as Whole Time Director and CFO respectively, of the Company w.e.f August 18, 2016. The 
remuneration shown above is the aggregate of the remuneration drawn in the capacity of Employee and Whole Time Director and CFO, respectively. 

***By virtue of Scheme of Arrangement between Transport Corporation of India Limited (Demerged Company) and TCI Express Limited (Resulting Company), the 
employees has been transferred from erstwhile XPS Division of Transport Corporation of India Limited to TCI Express Limited.

Note: None of employees is covered under rule 5(2) (ii) and (iii) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014 of Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.
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The Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 shall inter-alia apply to 

the Listed entity which has listed its speciied securities 

on recognized stock exchange(s). Post efectiveness of the 

Scheme of Arrangement and allotment of Equity Shares to 

the shareholders of Transport Corporation of India Limited, 

the Equity Shares got listed and permitted to trade on BSE Ltd 

and National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f December 

15, 2016. Hence, compliance with the provisions of Corporate 

Governance norms as speciied under SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is applicable 

on the Company from the date of listing i.e December 15, 2016. 

Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company’s philosophy on corporate governance envisages 

the fulilment of the highest levels of transparency, accountability 

and equity, in all facets of its operations and interactions with 

its stakeholders including government. Your Company is 

committed to benchmark itself with the best standards of 

Corporate Governance, not only in form but also in spirit.

The Corporate Governance guidelines are in compliance with 

the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In its search of eminence 

towards corporate governance, the Company has adopted the 

Report on Corporate Governance 
Whistle Blower Policy, Code of Conduct for its Directors and 

Employees, Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 

and Good Corporate Disclosure Practices.

Your Company identiies communication as a signiicant 

component of the corporate governance framework, therefore, 

following the principles of fair representation, complete and 

eicient low of appropriate communication and disclosure to 

stakeholders.

The Board of Directors

The ethics of a Company is strongly inluenced by the quality 

of governance and leadership demonstrated by the Board 

of Directors. Diversity in the Board equals diversity in ideas. 

In line with the commitment and principle of integrity and 

transparency in business operations for good corporate 

governance, the Company’s policy is to have an appropriate 

blend of Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors to maintain the independence of the Board. The 

Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive Director.

The names and categories of Directors, their attendance at 

the Board Meeting held during the year and at the last Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) held on November 4, 2016 and also 

the number of Directorships and Committee positions held by 

them in Companies are as follows:

Name of Director Category

Original 

date of 

appointment

No. of Director-

ship held in 

Companies

No. of Committee 

Position held

No. of Board 

meetings

Attended 

last AGM

Public Pvt. Member Chairman Held Attended

Mr. D.P. Agarwal Chairman & Non- 

Executive Director

07.10.2015 06 00 02 00 05 05 Yes

Mr. Chander Agarwal* Managing Director 07.10.2015 04 02 01 00 05 05 Yes

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Non- Executive 

Director

07.10.2015 05 03 07 00 05 05 Yes

Mr. Murali Krishna 

Chevuturi

Non-Executive 

Independent Director

18.08.2016 01 00 00 01 05 02*** Yes

Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha Non- Executive 

Independent Director

18.08.2016 09 02 02 03 05 02*** Yes

Mr. Prashant Jain Non-Executive 

Independent Director

18.08.2016 02 02 01 00 05 02*** Yes

Mrs. Taruna Singhi** Non- Executive 

Independent Director

31.01.2017 01 04 0 01 05 00 N.A

Mr. P. C. Sharma Whole Time Director 18.08.2016 02 01 01 00 05 02 Yes

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal ** Non-Executive 

Independent Director

18.08.2016 02 01 00 01 05 01 No

Notes:

1)  Directorship held in Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies are excluded.

2)  Chairmanship/Membership of Committee only includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in Indian Public Companies including TCI Express Limited.

Members of the Board of the Company do not have membership of more than ten Board-level Committee or Chairman of more than ive such committees.

3) Mr. D.P Agarwal, Mr. Chander Agarwal and Mr. Vineet Agarwal are related to each other

4) Details of the directors being re-appointed/appointed are given in the notice of Annual General Meeting.

5) Brief proile of each directors is available on the website of the Company.

6) Mr. Murali Krishna Chevuturi, Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha, Mr. Prashant Jain and Mrs.  Manisha Agarwal were appointed as Independent Directors by the Shareholders in the 8th Annual 

General Meeting held on November 4, 2016.

*Mr. Chander Agarwal was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f August 18, 2016

**Mrs. Manisha Agarwal has resigned from the directorship and Mrs. Taruna Singhi has appointed as Additional Director in category of Non-Executive Independent Director of the

Company w.e.f January 31, 2017.

***Attended all meetings held after their appointment.
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Board Meetings

The Board members meet at least once in every calendar 

quarter with a gap of not more than 120 days to review the 

quarterly results and other items of the Agenda. Additional 

meetings are held whenever necessary. In case of business 

exigencies or urgency of matters, resolutions are passed by 

circulation, as permitted by law and later placed in the ensuing 

Board Meeting for ratiication/adoption.

During the year under review, the Board met ive (5) times. The 

details of Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2016-

17 are as under:

Sl. 

No.

Date of the Board 

Meeting

Board 

Strength

No. of Directors 

Present

City

1 April 6, 2016 3 3 Gurugram

2 July 15, 2016 3 3 Gurugram

3 August 18, 2016 3 3 Hyderabad

4 November 4, 2016 8 7 Hyderabad

5 January 31, 2017 8 8 Gurugram

Besides above, a meeting of the Board of Directors was held on 

May 23, 2017 to consider and approve the audited inancials 

of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, which was 

attended by all Board members.

Board material distributed in advance

Agenda papers are circulated to the Directors, in advance, in 

the deined agenda format. All necessary/relevant information 

is incorporated in the agenda papers for facilitating meaningful, 

informed and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is 

not practicable to attach a document to the agenda, the same 

is placed on the table at the meeting with speciic reference 

to this efect in the agenda. The Board is also presented with 

relevant information on various matters related to working 

of the Company. With the permission of Chairman and other 

Directors present at the meeting, additional or supplementary 

item(s) in the agenda are taken up for discussion and 

consideration.

Post Meeting Mechanism

Minutes of the Board Meetings/Committee Meetings are 

circulated to the Directors in conformity with the provisions of 

Secretarial Standards and are thereafter signed by the Chairman 

of the next Board/Committee meeting. The important 

decisions taken at the Board/Board Committee meetings are 

communicated to the concerned departments.

Familiarization Programme for Directors

The Board members are provided with necessary documents, 

reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize 

themselve with Company’s procedures and practices. The 

Company through its Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior 

Managerial Personnel conducts programs /presentations 

to familiarize the Independent Directors with the strategy, 

operations and functions of the Company and to appraise them 

about their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company to 

enable them to make efective contribution and discharge their 

functions as a Board Member. The Independent Directors are 

also given every opportunity to interact with the Key / Senior 

Management Personnel and are given all the documents sought 

by them for enabling a good understanding of the Company, its 

various operations and the industry of which it is a part.

The details of the familiarization programme for Directors are 

available on the Company’s website: http://www.tciexpress.in/

pdf/FAMILARIZATION%20PROGRAM.pdf.

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and 
Senior Management

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Board of 

Directors and Senior Management (“the Code”). The Code has 

been communicated to the Directors and the members of 

Senior Management. The Code has also been posted on the 

Company’s website at www.tciexpress.in. All Board members 

and senior management have conirmed compliance with the 

Code for the year ended March 31, 2017. 

Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading 

The Company has adopted an Internal Code of Conduct for 

Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Insiders’ 

(“the Code”) in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

The Code is applicable to Promoters and Promoter’s Group, all 

Directors and such Designated Employees who are expected 

to have access to unpublished price sensitive information 

relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is the 

Compliance Oicer for monitoring adherence to the said 

Regulations. The Company has also formulated the ‘Code of 

Fair Disclosure & Conduct in compliance with SEBI (Prohibition 

of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and same is displayed on 

the Company’s website www.tciexpress.in

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for 

Independent Directors) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a meeting of the Independent 

Directors of the Company was duly held on May 23, 2017 without 

the presence of Non-Independent Directors and representatives 

of the management. The meeting was conducted to enable the 

Independent Directors to discuss and review the performance 

of Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, 

performance of the Chairman of the Company and for assessing 

the quality, quantity and timeliness of low of information 

between the Company’s management and the Board. 

The Committees of the Board

During the year under review, the Board Committees formed with 

approval of the Board functioned under their respective Charters 
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which are in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. These Committees play an important role in 

framing the policies and governance of the Company. The Board 

Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps 

to perform their duties entrusted to them by the Board, and as 

required by law. The Minutes of the Committee meetings are 

placed before the Board for noting.

The Board has currently established the 
following Committees:

I. Audit Committee

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

III. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

IV. Stakeholders’ Relationship  Committee

V. Share Transfer Committee

The role and composition of these Committees, including the 

number of meetings held during the inancial year and the 

related attendance are as follows:

I. Audit Committee

The composition of Audit Committee meets the requirements 

of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

18 of the Listing Regulations. All members of the Audit 

Committee are inancially literate and bring in expertise in the 

ields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, Risk and International 

Finance. It functions in accordance with its terms of reference 

that deines its authority, responsibility and reporting function. 

The terms of the Audit Committee is as per the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclsoure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The principal 

terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter-alia includes 

the following: 

Oversight of the Company’s inancial reporting process;  

The disclosures of its inancial information to ensure that 

inancial statement is correct, suicient and credible; 

Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms 

of appointment of auditors of the Company;  

Approval or any subsequent modiication of transactions of 

the Company with related parties;  

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

Evaluation of internal inancial controls and risk management 

systems;  

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public ofers 

and related matters; 

During the inancial year ended on March 31, 2017, the Audit 

Committee met two (2) times i.e on November 4, 2016 and 

January 31, 2017. The present composition and attendance of 

the Audit Committee is hereunder:

Name of the 

Member

Category Position 

Held

Number of 

Meetings 

attended

Mr. Murali Krishna 

Chevuturi

Non-Executive 

Independent

Chairman 2

Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Ladha

Non-Executive 

Independent

Member 2

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Non-Executive 

Non Independent

Member 2

Mr. Prashant Jain Non-Executive 

Independent

Member 2

Besides above, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held on 

May 23, 2017 to consider and approve the audited inancials of 

the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

The representatives of the Statutory Auditors and Internal 

Auditor and other Oicers of the Company also attend the 

Audit Committee meetings by invitation. The Company 

Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The composition and terms of reference of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee are in conformity with Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee inter-alia, include the following:

Identiication and recommendation to Board, of persons 

who are qualiied to become Director & Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMP) in accordance with the criteria laid 

down;

Considering recommendations of the KMPs w.r.t. 

appointment & removal of Senior Management Personnel 

(SMPs) in accordance with the criteria laid down and 

forwarding their recommendations to the Board 

accordingly;

Assist the Board in ensuring that plans are in place for 

orderly succession for appointment to the Board & Senior 

Management;

Ensure that the Board is balanced & follows a diversity 

policy in order to bring in professional experience in 

diferent areas of operations, transparency, corporate 

governance & inancial management etc;

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualiications, 

positive attributes and independence of a director;

Formulation of evaluation criteria for Independent/Non 

Independent/Executive Directors & the Board as a whole 

& the KMPs;

Ensure that directors are inducted through suitable 

familiarization process & that proper & regular training is 

given to Independent Directors to update & refresh their 

skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company;

Formulation & Supervision of the Remuneration Policy of 

the Company; and.
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Oversee the formulation and implementation of Employee 

Stock Option Plan, its administration, supervision and 

formulating detailed terms and conditions in accordance 

with SEBI Guidelines.

All the members of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee are Non-Executive Directors.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee meeting was held on January 

31, 2017. The present composition and attendance of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:

Name of the 

Member

Category Position 

Held

Number of 

Meetings 

attended

Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Ladha

Non-Executive 

Independent

Chairman 1

Mr. D.P. Agarwal Non-Executive Non 

Independent

Member 1

Mr. Murali Krishna 

Chevuturi

Non-Executive 

Independent

Member 1

Mr. Prashant Jain Non-Executive 

Independent

Member 1

Besides above, a meeting of the Committee was held on May 

23, 2017 to determine the inal remuneration to be paid to 

Executive Directors and Commission on proits  to be paid to 

Non-Executive Directors.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Performance evaluation criteria for Directors

The Annual performance evaluation and other relevant 

information is provided in the Directors’ Report forming part 

of Annual Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration 

Policy for its Directors, KMPs and other Employees. The 

Remuneration Policy has laid down the criteria for determining 

qualiications, positive attributes, independence of Director and 

Board diversity. The Policy lays down the factors for determining 

remuneration of  Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, 

KMPs and other Employees. 

The Payment of remuneration to the Executive/Whole Time 

Directors of the Company is subject to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and is governed by the terms and 

conditions of their appointment as approved by the Board 

subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the Central 

Government, where applicable. The remuneration structure 

comprises basic salary, perquisites and allowances, commission 

variable pay and contribution to provident, superannuation 

and gratuity funds. 

Non-Executive/Independent Directors of the Company are 

paid remuneration by way of fees for meetings attended of 

the Board or Committee thereof as approved by the Board 

from time to time within the prescribed limits. Non-Executive/ 

Independent Directors also paid commission as approved by 

the shareholders subject to a limit of 0.5% of the net proits 

of the Company computed under the applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013. The Commission payable to the 

Independent Directors is determined by the Board within 

the aforesaid limit of 0.5% of the net proits after taking into 

account their attendance and roles & responsibilities in various 

Committees of the Board.

Details of remuneration to Executive Directors during the year 

ended March 31, 2017 are given below:

(Amount in Rs.)

Name of 

Director

Salary Perquisites* Commi-

ssion

Total No. of  

Shares  

Held

Mr. Chander 

Agarwal

99,43,548 83,57,730 60,00,000 2,43,01,278 1052131

Mr. P. C. 

Sharma

44,33,710 32,23,018 - 76,56,728 40250

*Perquisites include Company’s contribution to provident fund, medical,

leave travel allowance, special allowance, etc. as well as monetary value of 

perquisites as per Income Tax Rules.

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sitting

Fee*

Commission Total No. of 

Shares 

Held

Mr. D.P. Agarwal - 3,00,000 3,00,000 419314

Mr. Vineet Agarwal - 3,00,000 3,00,000 991467

Mr. Murali Krishna 

Chevuturi 

70,000 3,00,000 3,70,000 -

Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Ladha

70,000 3,00,000 3,70,000 -

Mr. Prashant Jain - 3,00,000 3,00,000 -

Mrs. Manisha 

Agarwal

300,00 - 30,000 -

Mrs. Taruna Singhi - 3,00,000 3,00,000 -

* sitting fee for Board & Committee meetings.

Notes:

1. The Company has no inancial association or dealings with its Non-

Executive Directors other than payment of sitting fees and/ or disbursement 

of commission to them. 

2. Mr. D.P Agarwal, Mr. Vineet Agarwal and Mr. Prashant Jain, voluntarily did

not accept any sitting fees during F.Y 2016-17.

3. None of above Directors holds any stock options as on March 31, 2017.
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III. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

during the year under review, there was no amount required 

to be spent on Corporate Social Responsibility activities. 

The Board of Directors has constituted CSR committee 

comprising Directors as members and also framed a CSR 

policy in conformity with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013. The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 pertaining to expenditure of requisite amount on CSR 

activities, shall be applicable to the Company starting from 

inancial year 2017-18 and the Company would undertake CSR 

initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII to the Companies 

Act, 2013. The CSR Policy is uploaded on the website of the 

Company www.tciexpress.in

Terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, are:

To review the existing CSR Policy and to make it more 

comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be 

undertaken by the Company as speciied in the Companies 

Act, 2013;

To provide guidance on various CSR activities to be 

undertaken by the Company and to monitor process;

Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred 

on CSR activities; and

Institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for 

implementation of CSR projects or program or activities 

undertaken by the Company.

The present composition and attendance of the CSR Committee

is hereunder: 

Name of the 

Member

Category
Position 

Held

Number of 

Meetings 

attended

Mr. D.P. Agarwal Non-Executive 

Non Independent

Chairman

--
Mr. Chander Agarwal Managing Director Member

Mrs. Taruna Singhi Non-Executive 

Independent

Member

While no meetings of the Committee were held during 

the inancial year ended March 31, 2017, a  meeting of the 

Committee was held on May 23, 2017, to recommend the 

expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities during inancial 

year 2017-18, which was attended by all Committee members.

IV. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The composition and terms of reference of the Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee are in conformity with Section 178 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

There were two meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee held during the year ended March 31, 2017, i.e. 

on November 4, 2016 and January 31, 2017.The composition 

and attendance of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

is hereunder:

Name of the 

Member

Category Position 

Held

Number of 

Meetings 

attended

Mrs. Taruna Singhi* Non- Executive 

Independent

Chairperson -

Mrs. Manisha 

Agarwal*

Non- Executive 

Independent

Chairperson 1

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Non -Executive 

Non Independent

Member 2

Mr. P. C. Sharma Whole Time 

Director

Member 2

*Mrs. Manisha Agarwal has resigned from the directorship w.e.f January

31, 2017, who served as Chairperson of the Committee, subsequently Mrs. 

Taruna Singhi has appointed as Director and nominated as Chairperson of the 

Committee w.e.f January 31, 2017. 

Besides above, a meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee was held on May 23, 2017, which was attended by 

all the committee members.

Mr. Vinay Gujral, Company Secretary of the Company is 

designated as the Compliance Oicer and act as Secretary of 

the Committee.

Detail of investor complaints received, disposed of and 

outstanding as on March 31, 2017:

No. of Investor 

complaints 

balance at the 

beginning of 

the year

No. of Investor 

complaints 

received 

during the 

Year

No. of Investor 

complaints 

disposed-of 

during the 

Year

No. of Investor 

complaints 

outstanding

at the end of 

the Year

Nil 1 1 Nil

No investor complaint was outstanding as on March 31, 

2017.

V. Share Transfer Committee

The Share Transfer Committee is formed to look into share 

transfer and related applications received from shareholders. 

The members of the Committee are Mr. Chander Agarwal, 

Managing Director, Mr. Vineet Agarwal, Non-Executive Director 

and Mr. P. C. Sharma, Whole Time Director.

The terms of reference of the Committee include transfer/ 

transmission of shares and such other securities as may be 

issued by the Company from time to time, to approve and 

monitor dematerialization of shares /debentures / other 

securities and all matters incidental thereto, issue of duplicate 

share certiicates against sub-division/ split of shares & to allot 

shares.

Disclosures

Related Party Transactions

In order to ensure the transparency and procedural fairness of 

related party transactions and pursuant to the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board 

of Directors has adopted policy for Related Party Transactions. 
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The Policy for Related Party Transactions as approved may 

be accessed on the Company’s website at the following link: 

http://www.tciexpress.in/pdf/Policy%20on%20Related%20 

Party%20Transactions.pdf

There were no material signiicant related party transactions 

with the Company’s promoters, directors, management or 

their relatives which could have had a potential conlict with 

the interest of the Company. There were no material individual 

transactions with the related parties during the year, which 

were not in the normal course of business or not on Arms’ 

Length basis.

During the year under review, the Company has entered into 

Related Party Transactions which qualify as material related party 

transactions in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for which ratiication  of the 

shareholders is being sought at the ensuing  Annual General 

Meeting. All transactions entered into with Related Parties for the 

year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business.

Compliance with Regulations

The Company has complied with all the mandatory 

requirements speciied in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 

46 of SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015 with efect from the date 

of listing of Equity Shares with BSE Ltd and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited on December 15, 2016.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of the inancial statements, the Company 

has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in the 

Companies Act, 2013. The signiicant accounting policies 

which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the 

Financial Statements.

Detail of Non-Compliance by the Company/

Penalties/Strictures imposed on the Company by the 

on any matter related to the Capital markets during 

last 3 years

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company 

on any matters related to the capital markets or penalties, 

strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or 

SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital 

markets, during the last three years.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower 

Policy/ Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report 

to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or 

violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. The mechanism 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of 

Employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes 

provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit 

Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the 

Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 

Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website 

www.tciexpress.in

In compliance with Listing Regulations, the CEO & Whole 

Time Director and the Chief Financial Oicer have given the 

compliance certiicate which is annexed to this report.

General Body Meetings
Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as under:

F.Y ended Date & Time Venue Summary of Special Resolution(s) Passed

Annual General Meetings(AGMs)

March 31, 

2016

November 4, 

2016 at 11:30 

a.m

Emerald II, H- Floor, Taj

Krishna, Road No. 1,

Banjara Hills, Hyderabad

-500034, Telangana 

Appointment of Mr. Chander Agarwal as Managing Director and approval 

of remuneration thereof

Appointment of Mr. Phool Chand Sharma as Whole Time Director and 

approval of remuneration thereof

Limit of borrowing pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Creation of mortgage/charges pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Approval of Employee Stock Option Plan-2016.

Approval to extend the beneits of Employee Stock Option Plan-2016 to 

Employees of Holding and Subsidiary(s).

To approve fee to be charged from Shareholder for service of documents 

in a particular mode.

March 31, 

2015

 July 28, 2015 

at 11:00 a.m 
Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271

To 273, 3rd Floor Ashoka 

Bhoopal Chambers, SP. Road

Secunderabad Hyderabad 

Telangana 500003 

No

March 31, 

2014

July 21, 2014

at 4.00 p.m
No
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Postal Ballot
During the inancial year ended March 31, 2017, no resolution 

has been passed through postal ballot.

Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 
2016-17

Day and Date Tuesday, August 1, 2017

Time 11.30 A.M

Venue Salon II & III, Basement 1, Park Hyatt Hyderabad, 

Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad – 500034, 

Telangana

Financial Year 2016-17

Book Closure 

Date

Thursday, July 27, 2017 to Tuesday, August 1, 

2017 (both days inclusive)

Dividend 

Payment Date

The inal dividend, if approved will be paid within a 

period of thirty days from the date of approval by 

the shareholders

Tentative Calendar for Financial Year 2017-18

The tentative dates for Board Meetings for consideration of 

quarterly/ half yearly/ year ended inancial results are as follows:

For the FY 2017-18 Results likely to be announced*

Quarter ended June 30, 2017 On or before August 14, 2017

Quarter & Half year ended 

September 30, 2017

On or before November 14, 2017

Quarter & Nine months 

ended December 31, 2017

On or before February 14, 2018

Quarter & Year ended

March 31, 2018

On or before May 30, 2018

* tentative & subject to change

Means of Communications

i. The Financial Results are announced as per SEBI Listing 

Regulations, 2015.

ii.  The approved inancial results are forthwith sent to the 

Stock Exchanges and are published in a national English 

newspaper. In addition, the same are published in local 

language (Telugu) newspaper, within forty-eight hours of 

approval thereof. 

iii.  The Company’s inancial results and oicial press releases 

are sent to the stock exchanges and displayed on the 

Company’s website www.tciexpress.in

iv.  Any presentation made to the institutional investors or/and 

analysts is also sent to the stock exchanges and displayed 

on the Company’s website www.tciexpress.in

v.  The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly 

compliances and all other corporate communication to the 

Stock Exchanges are iled electronically on the online portal 

of National Stock Exchange Ltd. and BSE Ltd.

vi.  A separate dedicated section under Investors Relations on 

the Company’s website gives information on unclaimed 

dividends, shareholding pattern, quarterly/half yearly 

results and other relevant information of interest to the 

investors/shareholders/public at large.

Listing Information

Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd and National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Scrip Code on BSE is 

540212 and on NSE is TCIEXP. The ISIN Number of Company is 

INE586V01016. The Company has paid Annual listing fee for the 

inancial year 2016-17 to the above Stock Exchanges.

Unclaimed Dividend

During the year under review, the Board in its meeting held 

on January 31, 2017, has declared an interim dividend of 40% 

(Re. 0.80 per equity share of Rs. 2/- each) which was paid to 

the shareholders in the month of February, 2017, the due date 

for transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund is hereunder:

Year
Nature of 

Dividend

Date of 

Declaration

Due date for 

2016-17
Interim 

Dividend
January 31, 2017 March 8, 2024

Distribution of Shareholding

Sl. 

No.
Category

No. of 

Cases

% of 

Cases
Amount 

% of 

Amount

1 01-5000 26,617 98.60 84,15,602 10.99

2 5001-10000 190 0.70 13,93,582 1.82

3 10001-20000 92 0.34 13,36,684 1.75

4 20001-30000 28 0.10 6,91,584 0.90

5 30001-40000 19 0.07 6,79,192 0.89

6 40001-50000 3 0.01 1,35,884 0.18

7 50001-100000 9 0.03 6,56,782 0.86

8 1000001 & above 38 0.14 6,32,68,140 82.62

Total 26,996 100.00 7,65,77,450 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

As on March 31, 2017, the status of equity shares in Demat and 

Physical form is provided hereunder:

Particulars No. of Shares % of capital

Shares held in Demat form with 

NSDL

3,46,10,806 90.39

Shares held in Demat form with 

CDSL

14,49,611 3.79

Shares held in Physical 22,28,308 5.82

Total 3,82,88,725 100

Market Price Data from the month of Listing of Shares:

Month High Price Low Price

Dec-16 387.70 268.50

Jan-17 313.20 280.00

Feb-17 316.85 287.00

Mar-17 434.70 293.05

Month High Price Low Price

Dec-16 386.30 265.15

Jan-17 324.95 281.55

Feb-17 317.75 284.10

Mar-17 435.00 296.00
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ty with efect from the month of Listing i.e December, 2016

150.00

100.00

50.00

0.00

Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Sensex TCI EXPRESS

150.00

100.00

50.00

0.00

Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

NSE Nifty TCI EXPRESS

Transfer of shares

The transfer of shares in physical form is processed and completed by Registrar & Transfer Agent within a period of ifteen days from 

the date of receipt thereof provided all the documents are in order. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by 

NSDL/CDSL through respective Depository Participants. In compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, a Practicing Company 

Secretary carries out audit of the System of Transfer and a certiicate to that efect is issued.

Address for Correspondence

Company Secretary & Compliance O�cer Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mr. Vinay Gujral

TCI Express Limited Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.

Corporate Oice: TCI House, 69, Institutional Area,

Sector 32, Gurugram, 122001, Tel. 0124-2384090-94

Fax. 0124-2382113

Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32,

Financial District, Gachibowli,

Hyderabad 500 032, India

E-mail: secretarial@tciexpress.in,

Website: www.tciexpress.in

E-mail: rajeev.kr@karvy.com

Website: www.karvycomputershare.com

Non Mandatory Requirements

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 is being reviewed by the Board from time to time.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place: Gurugram D.P. Agarwal

Date:  23.05.2017 Chairman

Declaration pursuant to Schedule V of the Listing Regulation

In accordance with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, I hereby declare that the Directors and Senior Management of the 

Company have airmed Compliance with Code of Conduct as applicable to them for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Place: Gurugram P.C. Sharma

Date: 23.05.2017 Whole Time Director
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We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Oicer of TCI Express Limited (“the 

Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

i.  We have reviewed inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, 

we state that: 

a.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 

be misleading;

b.  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s afairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

ii.  We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, 

which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s code of conduct. 

iii.  We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for inancial reporting and that we have evaluated the 

efectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to inancial reporting of the Company and have disclosed 

to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deiciencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are 

aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deiciencies.

iv. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

a.  signiicant changes, if any, in internal control over inancial reporting during the year; signiicant changes, if any, in accounting 

policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the inancial statements; and

b.  Instances of signiicant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 

an employee having a signiicant role in the Company’s internal control systems over inancial reporting.

Place: Gurugram P.C. Sharma Mukti Lal

Date: 23.05.2017 Whole Time Director CFO

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

To

The Members

TCI Express Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by TCI Express Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘the 

Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2017, as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, 46 (2) (b) to (i) and para C, D and E of Schedule 

V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter 

referred as “LODR”) for the period ended on March 31, 2017.

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management, and our examination was 

limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 

the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the inancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in LODR.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the eiciency or 

efectiveness with which the management has conducted the afairs of the Company.

For M/s. R.S. Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

R.S. Agarwala

Date: 23.05.2017 Partner

Camp: Gurugram M. No. 005534
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of TCI Express Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying inancial statements of 

TCI Express Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 the Statement of Proit 

and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 

and a summary of the signiicant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

with respect to the preparation of these inancial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the inancial position, inancial 

performance and cash lows of the Company in accordance 

with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, 

including Accounting Standards speciied under section 

133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 (as amended). This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act; for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls, 

that were operating efectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the inancial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these inancial 

statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 

accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 

required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 

of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing speciied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the inancial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the inancial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the inancial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal inancial controls relevant to the Company’s 

preparation of the inancial statements that give a true and fair 

view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate 

internal inancial controls system over inancial reporting and the 

operating efectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 

by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

suicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the inancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone inancial 

statements give the information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of afairs of the Company as at 31st March 2017 and its Proit 

and its cash lows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 

the Act,(hereinafter referred to as the “order”), and on 

the basis of such checks of the books and records of the 

company as we considered appropriate and according to 

the information and explanations given to us,  we give in 

the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters speciied in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books;

c)  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proit and Loss, and 

the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account;

d)  in our opinion, the aforesaid inancial statements 

comply with the Accounting Standards Speciied under 

Section 133 the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rule, 2014.

Auditor’s Report



44

e)  on the basis of written representations received from 

the directors as on 31st March 2017 and taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualiied as on 31st March 2017, from being appointed 

as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f )  with respect to the adequacy of the internal inancial 

control over inancial reporting of the company and 

the operating efectiveness of the such control, refer to 

our separate report in Annexure “B”. 

g)  with respect to other matter to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us :

  i)  The Company does not have any pending litigations 

which would impact its inancial position.

  ii)  The Company did not have any long terms contract 

including derivative  Contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses.

  iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company.

  iv)  The Company has provided requisite disclosures 

in its inancial statements as to holding as well as 

dealings in Speciied Bank Notes during the period 

from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 

and these are in accordance with books of account 

maintained by the Company. (Refer Note. 26 of the 

Financial Statement)

For R.S. Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No:-304045E

(R.S.Agarwala)

Camp:- Gurugram Partner

Date: 23.05.2017 Membership No.005534

Annexure “A” to Independence Auditors’ Report 
of even date to the members of TCI Express 
Limited, on the Financial Statement for the 
period ended 31st March, 2017.

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on 

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of 

even date.

1. a)  The company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

ixed assets.

b)  We are informed that a test of physical veriication of 

these assets was carried out by the management at 

reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were 

noticed. In our Opinion, the frequency of veriication of 

Fixed Assets is reasonable having regards to the size of 

the Company and nature of its assets.

c)  The immovable properties, as disclosed in the inancial 

statements, except acquired during the year, have been 

transferred on demerger and subsequently the title 

deeds of some of the Immovable Properties, has been 

transferred in the name of the Company and rest are in 

process of transfer.

2.  The company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, 

the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order, 2016 are not 

applicable.

3.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured 

or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, 

the provisions of Clause 3 (iii) of the said order are not 

applicable.

4.  The Company has not granted any loans or made any 

investments, or provided any guarantees or security to 

the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said order 

are not applicable.

5.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

public.

6.  The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 

of cost records under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the 

Act in respect of any activities of the Company.

7. (a)  According to the information and explanation given 

to us and records of the Company examined by us, 

in our opinion the Company is regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 

employees’ state insurance, income tax,  service tax, 

custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and any 

other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to 

us and the record of the company examined by us, the 

particulars of dues of income tax or services tax or duty 

of excise or value added tax or cess or employees state 

insurance as at 31st March, 2017, which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute are as under:

Nature of 
Statute

Nature of 
dues

` (in 
lakh)

Period 
to which 
amount
relates

Forum 
where 
dispute is 
pending

Sales tax 
Act (in 
various 
states)

Trade tax 94.95 F.Y 2015-16 
to 2016-17

Various 
authority

Labour
Act

Labour laws 2.00 F.Y 2015-16 
to 2016-17

Various 
authority

8.  According to the records of the company examined by 

us and the information and explanations given to us, 

the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
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or borrowings to any inancial institutions or bank or 

Government during the period. 

9.  The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial 

public ofer, further public ofer (including debt instruments) 

and term loans. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 

the said order are not applicable to the company.

10.  During the course of our examination of the books and 

records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 

the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 

according to the information and explanations given to 

us, we have neither come across any instance of material 

fraud by the company or on the Company by its oicers or 

employees, noticed or reported during the period, nor have 

we been informed of any such cases by the management 

during the course of our audit.

11.  The company has paid/provided for managerial 

remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 

mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 

schedule V to the Act

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company.

13.  The transactions with related parties are  in compliance 

with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Act. 

The details of the related party transactions have been 

disclosed in the inancial statements as required under 

Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures 

speciied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

14.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 

private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the period under review. Therefore, the 

provisions of Clause 3 (xiv) of the order are not applicable.

15.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its directors or persons connected with 

him. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (xv) of the order 

are not applicable.

16.  The Company is not required to be registered under 

Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For R.S. Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No:-304045E

(R.S.Agarwala)

Camp:- Gurugram Partner

Date: 23.05.2017 Membership No.005534

Annexure B to The Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f ) of the Independent Auditors’ Report 

of even date to the members of TCI Express Limited on the 

inancial statements for the period ended 31st March, 2017.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 

(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

We have audited the internal inancial controls over inancial 

reporting of TCI Express Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st

March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the inancial 

statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal inancial controls based on the 

internal control over inancial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls that were 

operating efectively for ensuring the orderly and eicient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable inancial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

internal inancial controls over inancial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal inancial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

inancial controls over inancial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated efectively in all 

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal inancial 

controls system over inancial reporting and their operating 

efectiveness. Our audit of internal inancial controls over 

inancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal inancial controls over inancial reporting, assessing the 

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 

the design and operating efectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the inancial statements, whether 
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due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

suicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal inancial controls system 

over inancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting

A company’s internal inancial control over inancial reporting is 

a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of inancial reporting and the preparation of 

inancial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 

inancial control over inancial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly relect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (b) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of inancial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 

only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 

could have a material efect on the inancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial controls 

over inancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 

or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

inancial controls over inancial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal inancial control over 

inancial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal inancial controls system over inancial 

reporting and such internal inancial controls over inancial 

reporting were operating efectively as at 31st March, 2017, 

based on the internal control over inancial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R.S. Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No:-304045E

(R.S.Agarwala)

Camp:- Gurugram Partner

Date: 23.05.2017 Membership No.005534
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017
Particulars Note As at 31st March17 As at 31st March16 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital 1  7,65,77,450  7,60,73,600 

  Reserves and Surplus 2  1,52,34,71,862 1,15,37,13,688

 1,60,00,49,312  1,22,97,87,288 

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-Term Borrowings 3  51,75,469  58,02,733 

  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4  2,94,36,501  2,35,43,807 

 3,46,11,970  2,93,46,540 

Current Liabilities

Short-Term Borrowings 5  30,51,72,257  39,74,83,220 

  Trade Payables 6

        -  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  -  - 

        -  Others  37,79,87,017  23,15,96,013 

  Other Current Liabilities 7  8,80,54,778  7,68,79,258 

Short-Term Provisions 8  11,78,99,584  1,98,89,828 

 88,91,13,636  72,58,48,319 

TOTAL  2,52,37,74,918  1,98,49,82,147 

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets 9

Tangible Assets  96,80,61,198  61,67,69,709 

Intangible Assets  1,62,08,010  2,06,93,862 

Capital Work-in-Progress  7,85,35,534  9,07,34,027 

  Long-Term Loans and Advances 10  4,09,77,918  2,83,64,554 

 1,10,37,82,660  75,65,62,152 

Current Assets

  Trade Receivables 11  1,14,91,34,481  1,05,39,24,665 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  8,78,37,276  10,91,31,886 

  Short-Term Loans and Advances 13  18,30,20,500  6,53,63,444 

 1,41,99,92,257  1,22,84,19,995 

TOTAL  2,52,37,74,918  1,98,49,82,147 

THE NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-32

(Amount in `)

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For R S Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 304045E

D.P. Agarwal 

(Chairman)

Chander Agarwal

(Managing Director)

Murali Krishna Chevuturi

(Director)

R S Agarwala

Partner

(Membership No.005534)

P. C. Sharma

(Whole Time Director)

Mukti Lal

(AVP & CFO)

Vinay Gujral

(Co. Secretary)

Place :  Gurugram

Date : May 23, 2017 
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st March 2017
(Amount in `)

Particulars Note Year  Ended

31st March17

Year  Ended

31st March16

REVENUE 

Revenue from Operations 14 7,53,87,11,380 -

Other Income 15 1,36,51,238 25,416

TOTAL  REVENUE 7,55,23,62,618 25,416

Operating Expenses 16 5,76,32,24,450 -

Employee Beneits Expense 17 58,81,74,562 -

Finance Costs 18 1,87,32,340 -

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 9 4,31,39,503 -

Other Expenses 19 52,46,79,848 1,65,924

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,93,79,50,703 1,65,924

Proit/(Loss) Before Tax 61,44,11,915 (1,40,508)

Tax Expense

Current Tax 20,13,86,835 369

Deferred Tax 58,92,694 -

Proit/(Loss) for the year 40,71,32,386 (1,40,877)

Earning Per Equity Share of Rs. 2 Each

Basic 24 10.63 0.00

Diluted 10.63 0.00

THE NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE  FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

1-32

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For R S Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 304045E

D.P. Agarwal 

(Chairman)

Chander Agarwal

(Managing Director)

Murali Krishna Chevuturi

(Director)

R S Agarwala

Partner

(Membership No.005534)

P. C. Sharma

(Whole Time Director)

Mukti Lal

(AVP & CFO)

Vinay Gujral

(Co. Secretary)

Place :  Gurugram

Date : May 23, 2017 
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year 
st March 2017

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March17

Year ended 

31st March16

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Proit before Tax and exceptional items 61,44,11,915 (1,40,877)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses  4,31,39,503  - 

Loss/(Proit) on sale of Fixed Assets  14,81,934 -

Preliminary expenses written of  -  42,824 

Finance Cost  1,87,32,340  - 

Interest Received  1,06,051  (25,416)
 6,34,59,828  17,408 

Operating Proit before Working Capital Changes 67,78,71,744 (1,23,469)

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/Decrease Trade Receivables  & Other Receivables (9,52,09,816)  (1,05,39,24,665)

Increase/(Decrease) Trade Payables   & Other Payables 13,69,13,534  26,29,96,735 

Changes in Pursuant to the Scheme -  2,35,43,807 

Cash Generation From Operations 71,95,75,461 (76,75,07,592)

Direct Taxes Paid (20,13,99,595)  - 

Net Cash from Operating Activities   (A) 51,81,75,866  (76,75,07,592)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets   (38,06,36,234)  (72,81,97,598)
Proceeds on Sale of Fixed Assets  14,07,654  - 

Long-Term Loan and Advances (1,26,13,364) (2,83,64,554)

Interest Received (1,06,051)  25,416 

Net Cash from Investing Activities     (B) (39,19,47,996)  (75,65,36,736)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short-Term Borrowings (Net)  (9,23,10,963)  39,74,83,220 

Proceeds from Term Borrowings 55,80,000  58,02,733 

Repayment of Term Borrowings (51,88,815)  - 

Payment of Interim Dividend   (3,06,34,000)  -

Payment of Dividend Tax   (62,36,362)  - 

Finance Cost (1,87,32,340)  - 

Changes in Pursuant to the Scheme -  1,22,94,73,913 

Net Cash from Financing Activities     ( C ) (14,75,22,480) 1,63,27,59,866

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (2,12,94,610) 10,87,15,538

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AS ON 31ST MARCH 2016  10,91,31,886 4,16,348

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AS ON 31ST MARCH 2017 8,78,37,276 10,91,31,886

(Amount in `)

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For R S Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 304045E

D.P. Agarwal 

(Chairman)

Chander Agarwal

(Managing Director)

Murali Krishna Chevuturi

(Director)

R S Agarwala

Partner

(Membership No.005534)

P. C. Sharma

(Whole Time Director)

Mukti Lal

(AVP & CFO)

Vinay Gujral

(Co. Secretary)

Place :  Gurugram

Date : May 23, 2017 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(1) SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in `)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Authorised :
50,000,000 ( previous year 1,00,000 shares of  Rs 10 each ) Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 10,00,00,000 10,00,000

10,00,00,000 10,00,000
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up :
38,288,725 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up issued to the shareholders of 
Transport Corporation of India Ltd, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement 

7,65,77,450 -

Share Capital Suspense Account : - 7,60,73,600
Total Share Capital 7,65,77,450 7,60,73,600

The Company has only one class of Equity Share having a par value of Rs 2 per share.  Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
The dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders, except in case of Interim Dividend.  In the event 
of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in 
proportion of their shareholding.

Reconciliation of the Number of Shares Outstanding

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Number of shares Amount in ` Number of shares Amount in `

Shares at the begining of the year - - 50,000 5,00,000
Shares alloted during the year to shareholders of Transport 
Corporation of India Limited, pursuant to the Scheme of 
Arrangement
Add : Alloted to the erstwhile employees of Transport Corporation 
of India Limited against Employees Stock Option exercised by them 
during the year.

 3,80,36,800 

 2,51,925 

 7,60,73,600 

 5,03,850 

 - 

-

 - 

-

Less: Cancellation of Equity Share Capital as per Scheme of Arrangement - - (50,000 ) (5,00,000)
Share Capital Suspense Account  -  - 3,80,36,800 7,60,73,600

Shares at the end of the Year 3,82,88,725 7,65,77,450 - -

Details of Shareholders Holding More Than 5% Shares:

Name of Shareholders As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Number of Shares held % of Holding Number of Shares held % of Holding 

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Limited 79,52,339 20.77 - -
Bhoruka International (P) Limited 52,80,877 13.79 - -
Dharmpal Agarwal – TCI Trading 24,87,497 6.50 - -
TCI India Limited 20,22,782 5.28 - -
Cancellation as per Scheme of Arrangement - -  50,000  100 

(2) RESERVES & SURPLUS 

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Business Restructuring Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Cancellation of share capital as per scheme of Arrangement -  5,00,000 
Add: Transferred as per Scheme (Note 25) - 1,22,94,73,913

Less: Transferred as per Scheme (Note 25) - (7,60,73,600)
Less: Transferred as per Scheme (Note 25) - (1,15,39,00,313)

General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  1,15,39,00,313  - 
Less :  Shares alloted to the erstwhile employees of Transport Corporation of India 
Limited against  Employees Stock Option exercised by them during the year.

(5,03,850)  - 

Add: Transferred from Statement of Proit and Loss 25,00,00,000  1,15,39,00,313 

Closing Balance  1,40,33,96,463  1,15,39,00,313 

Surplus As Per Statement of Proit and Loss
As per last Balance Sheet (1,86,625) (45,748)
Add: Proit/(Loss) for the year 40,71,32,386 (1,40,877)
Less : Interim Dividend paid on Equity Shares (3,06,34,000)  - 

      Tax on Dividend (62,36,362)  - 
Transferred to General Reserve (25,00,00,000)  - 
Closing Balance 12,00,75,399 (1,86,625)
Total  1,52,34,71,862  1,15,37,13,688 
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(3) LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Secured
Term Loans :
From Banks  1,09,68,758  1,05,77,572 
Total  1,09,68,758  1,05,77,572 

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (Note 7)  57,93,289  47,74,839 
Total  51,75,469  58,02,733 

Other Information Pertaining to Nature of Security and terms of repayment

Particulars of Nature of Security Terms of Repayment Secured to the extent
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Term Loans from Bank: Repayable in 36 monthly 
installments at an average rate 

of 8.55% p.a.

Vehicle loans secured by respective vehicles 1,09,68,758 1,05,77,572

Total 1,09,68,758 1,05,77,572

(4) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Diference between book and tax depreciation  3,04,23,277  2,35,43,807 

Disallowance under the Income Tax Act (9,86,776)  - 

 2,94,36,501  2,35,43,807 

(5) SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Secured
Working Capital Loans 
From Bank (i)  10,51,72,257  39,74,83,220 
Unsecured Loans :
From Banks 
Commercial Paper  20,00,00,000 -
Total  30,51,72,257  39,74,83,220 

(i)  Particulars of nature of security: Working capital loans are secured by hypothecation of book debts as primary security 

along with certain land and building as collateral.

(6) TRADE PAYABLES 

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Other than Acceptances:

   -  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
    - Others

-
 37,79,87,017 

-
 23,15,96,013 

Total  37,79,87,017  23,15,96,013 

(7) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings (Note-3)
   - From banks  57,93,289  47,74,839 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  29,653  70,848 
Unclaimed dividends  6,67,151  - 
Fractional Shares Entitlements payable  4,67,284  - 
Trade / security deposits  3,50,98,425  2,86,38,011 
Due to Gratuity Fund  1,18,17,000  83,83,163 
Payable on acquistion of ixed assets  2,52,50,126  2,89,04,338 
Statutory remittances  89,31,850  61,08,059 
Total  8,80,54,778  7,68,79,258 

(8) SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Provisions for Employee Beneits
   For Bonus
   For leave encashment 

1,41,46,750
1,23,63,000

1,03,78,123
95,11,705

Taxation (net of advance tax)  9,13,89,834 -
Total  11,78,99,584  1,98,89,828 

(Amount in `)
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(10) LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Unsecured, Considered Good

For Capial Expenditure  4,09,77,918  1,23,50,905 
Advance & deposits with related parties  -  1,60,13,649 

Total  4,09,77,918  2,83,64,554 

(11) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Unsecured, Considered good

(i) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date  1,78,77,644  2,16,98,995 
(ii) Others  1,13,12,56,837  1,03,22,25,670 
Total  1,14,91,34,481  1,05,39,24,665 

(12) CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars As at  31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Balances with Banks

-Current Accounts  - 10,56,52,466
*Earmarked balances

-Unclaimed dividend  6,67,151  - 
-Fractional Shares 4,67,284  - 
-Margin Money Deposits 11,62,556 5,10,639
-Security Deposits lodged with customers 1,60,639  - 

Cash on Hand 22,02,206 29,68,781
Cheques, Drafts on Hand 8,31,77,440  - 

Total 8,78,37,276 10,91,31,886

* As ixed deposits which more than 12 months maturity

(13) SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Unsecured
Advance/deposits with Landlords  4,04,53,728  3,61,56,772 
Advance/deposits with related parties  1,60,13,649 -
Security deposits with customers  50,07,114  51,05,501 
Advances to employees  17,59,177  14,44,006 
Prepaid expenses  56,77,843  54,55,759 
CENVAT credit receivable  1,17,07,951  76,80,338 
Tax deducted at source  9,14,05,134  2,540 
Accrued Income  80,328  4,959 
Operational advances  1,19,16,274  1,05,14,267 

 18,40,21,198  6,63,64,142 
Considered good  18,30,20,500  6,53,63,444 
Considered doubtful  10,00,698  10,00,698 
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (10,00,698) (10,00,698)
Total  18,30,20,500  6,53,63,444 

In the Opinion of the Management, assets other than ixed assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal 
to the amount at which they are stated.

(14) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Freight, Demurrage and Miscellaneous Charges  7,53,87,11,380  -   
Total  7,53,87,11,380  -   

(15) OTHER INCOME

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Rent  1,26,58,324  - 
Bad Debts and Irrecoverable Balances Written of Earlier,  Realised  1,49,005  - 
Unspent Liabilities/Excess Provisions Written Back  6,40,861  - 
Interest  1,06,051  25,416 
Miscellaneous Income  96,997  -   
Total  1,36,51,238  25,416 
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(16) OPERATING EXPENSES
(Amount in `)

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Freight   5,58,83,73,818  - 
Other Transportation Expenses  17,19,32,077  - 
Claims for Loss & Damages  24,21,003  - 
Clearing and Forwarding Expenses  4,97,551  - 
Total  5,76,32,24,450  - 

(17) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Salaries & Bonus  48,99,40,873  - 
Contribution To Provident & Other Funds  3,91,83,555  - 
Contribution To Employees' State Insurance  93,49,694  - 
Staf Welfare & Development Expenses  4,97,00,440  - 
Total  58,81,74,562  - 

(18) FINANCE COSTS

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Interest Expenses  1,87,32,340  - 
Total  1,87,32,340  - 

(19) OTHER EXPENSES

(A) Administrative Expenses

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016

Rent  20,20,82,922  - 

Rates and Taxes  35,45,473  - 
Insurance  16,21,374  - 
Telephone Expenses  1,13,75,204  - 
Printing and Stationery  1,39,52,992  - 
Travelling Expenses  5,64,29,963  - 
Legal Expenses  5,13,321  - 
Postage And Telegram  50,64,611  - 
Loss on sale of Assets  14,81,934  - 
Electricity Expenses  2,33,84,810  - 
Bank Charges  56,98,193  - 
Advertisement Expenses  23,08,075  - 
Oice Maintenance & Security Exp.  7,34,90,552  - 
E Mail/I. Net/Telex Expenses  1,77,91,027  - 
Consultancy Expenses  78,76,148  - 
Conference & Seminar Exp.  35,23,404  - 
Commission & Fees to Directors  19,70,000  - 
Charity & Donations  1,21,00,000  - 
Remuneration to Auditors

- Audit Fees  4,50,000  - 
- Tax Audit Fees  3,50,000  - 

Miscellaneous Expenses  3,21,09,571  1,65,924 
Bad Debts and Irrecoverable Balances Written of  67,99,145  - 
Sub-Total  48,39,18,719  1,65,924 

(B) Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2016
Other Vehicles  1,19,01,474  - 

Plant & Machinery  17,93,409  - 
Computers  1,43,27,574  - 
Buildings  1,27,38,672  - 
Sub-Total  4,07,61,129  - 
Total  52,46,79,848  1,65,924 



55

Annual Report 2016-17

(20) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

I. List of Related Parties:

i.  Key Managerial Personnel:  ii. Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Chander Agarwal - Managing Director
Mr. Phool Chand Sharma - Whole Time  Director

Mr. DP Agarwal - Father of Mr. Chander Agarwal & 
Chairman of Board of Directors

Mr.  Mukti Lal -  Chief Financial Oicer
Mr.  Vinay Gujral - Company Secretary

Mr. Vineet Agarwal- Brother of Mr. Chander Agarwal & 
Director of this Company

iii. Enterprises over which KMPs/ relatives of KMPs exercise signiicant inluence

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd XPS Cargo Services Ltd
TCI Properties (Guj) – Partnership irm TCI India Ltd
TCI Properties (Delhi) – Partnership irm TCI Warehousing (MH) – Partnership irm
TCI Developers Ltd. Transport Corporation of India Ltd
TCI Properties (West) Ltd. Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd
TCI Institute of Logistics

II.Transactions during the year with related parties: (Amount in `)

Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Transactions during the year :

Enterprises over which KMPs/ relatives 
of KMPs exercise signiicant inluence

Income :
Freight Income

-Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd          29,57,158  - 
- Transport  Corporation of India Ltd          34,27,647  - 

Rent Received - Transport Corporation of India Limited       1,20,50,880  - 
Expenditure :

Enterprises over which KMPs/ relatives 
of KMPs exercise signiicant inluence

Rent Payment 
- Transport Corporation of India Limited       3,00,34,368  - 
- TCI Properties  (Delhi)       1,02,12,000  - 
- XPS Cargo Services Ltd       2,67,72,300  - 
- Others          91,61,000  - 

Freight Expense - Transport Corporation of India Ltd          22,28,478  - 
Fuel Purchase - TCI India Ltd            3,48,211  - 
Training Expenses -  TCI Institute of Logistics            2,37,100  - 
Shipping Expenses - Transport Corporation of India Ltd          69,20,846  - 
Remuneration KMP- Managing Director 2,43,01,278  - 
Remuneration KMP- Whole Time Director 76,56,727  - 
Remuneration KMP- others 23,31,921  - 
Consultancy  Expenses - TCI Developers ltd Enterprises over which KMPs/ relatives 

of KMPs exercise signiicant inluence
19,48,500  - 

III. Balance as at the year end :
Assets:
Trade Receivables Enterprises over which KMPs/ relatives 

of KMPs exercise signiicant inluence
4,95,893  3,16,002 

Advances/ Deposits Given 1,60,13,649  1,60,13,649 
Liabilities:
Remuneration payable  Managing Director and Non Executive 

& Non Independent Directors
66,00,000  - 

(21) SEGMENT INFORMATION

  As the Company’s main business activity falls with in a single primary Business segment viz. “Express Cargo” the disclosure 
requirements of Segment Reporting as per Accounting Standard - 17 are not applicable. 

(22) DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO ACCOUNTING STANDARD-15 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Amount in `)

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Gratuity 

Funded

Leave Encashment 

Unfunded

Gratuity 

Funded

Leave Encashment 

Unfunded
A) Changes in Deined Beneit Obligation (DBO)
Present Value of DBO at the beginning of the year 6,55,99,945 94,51,802 - -
Interest Cost 43,71,869 7,08,885 - -
Current service cost 65,75,405 25,79,475 - -
Beneits paid (81,83,082) - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - (1,018,162) - -
Present value of the DBO at the end of the year 6,83,64,137 1,17,22,000 6,55,99,945 94,51,802
B) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 6,83,64,137 1,17,22,000 - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,68,10,639  -   - -
Net liability/(assets) recognised in Balance Sheet 1,15,53,498 1,17,22,000 - -
Funded Status (1,15,53,498) (1,17,22,000) - -
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Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Gratuity 

Funded

Leave Encashment 

Unfunded

Gratuity 

Funded

Leave Encashment 

Unfunded
C) Expense recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss
Interest cost 43,71,869 7,08,885 - -
Current service cost 65,75,405     25,79,475 - -
Expected return on plan assets (38,39,774)  -   - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 44,45,998 (10,18,162) - -
Expenses to be recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss 1,15,53,498 22,70,198 - -
D) Changes in Fair Value of Planned Assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 5,27,70,784 - - -
Expected return on plan assets 38,39,774 - - -
Contributions 83,83,163 - - -
Beneit paid (81,83,082) - - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets - - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,68,10,639 - 5,27,70,784 -
E) Fair Value of Planned Assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 5,27,70,784 - - -
Actual return on plan assets 38,39,774 - - -
Contributions 83,83,163 - - -
Beneits paid (81,83,082) - - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5,68,10,639 - 5,27,70,784 -
F) Actuarial Assumptions
Discout Rate  6.60% p.a - - -
Expected Rate of Return  7.50% p.a - - -

(23) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Amount in `)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

(a) Contingent liabilities not provided in respect of following 

Trade Tax/ Octroi/ Duty and other demands under dispute 96,94,618 24,20,766
Guarantees and Counter Guarantees Outstanding 45,60,320 43,82,452
(b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for net of advance on tangible assets.

 12,88,81,052  11,08,77,825 

(24) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Amount in `)

Particulars Unit As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Net proit after tax available for equity shareholders - ( for 
Basic and Diluted EPS)

In  Rupees  40,71,32,386  (1,40,877)

Weighted average no. of equity shares for Basic EPS Nos. 3,82,88,725  - 
Weighted average no. of equity shares for Diluted EPS Nos.  3,82,88,725  - 
Nominal Value of Equity Share In  Rupees 2.00 -
Basic Earnings per Equity Share In  Rupees 10.63 -
Diluted Earnings per Equity Share In  Rupees 10.63  - 

Note : Earning per share  has been computed by including in the equity share capital from the beginning of the year, the equity shares issued 
pursuant to the scheme of demerger for the purpose of calculating the number of shares outstanding during the year.

(25) SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

a)  The Scheme of arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956 for demerger of the XPS undertaking of 
Transport Corporation of India Limited as a going concern into TCI Express Limited  was sanctioned by the Hon’ble High 
court of Telangana and Andhara Pradesh  on 14th June, 2016 and the scheme became efective from the appointed date at 
the Close business hours of 31st March 2016.  In terms of the said scheme, all the assets and liabilities of the XPS undertaking 
have been transferred as a going concern at the values appearing in the books of the Transport Corporation of India Limited 
and were included in the Balance sheet of TCI Express Limited as at 31st March 2016 which was approved by its members at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 4th November 2016. The previeus year igures in this Balance Sheet as 
at 31st March 2017, are predominentny made upto the said assets and liabilities. The particulars of the assets and liabilities 
transferred are as follows.

Assets:  (Amount in `)

Fixed Assets 63,74,63,571
Capital Work-in-Progress 9,07,34,027
Long-Term Loans and Advances 2,83,64,554
Short-Term Loans and Advances 6,53,60,673

(Amount in `)
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Assets:  (Amount in `)

Trade Receivable 1,05,39,24,665
Cash and Bank Balances 10,87,19,813
Total 1,98,45,67,303

Liabilities :  (Amount in `)
Long Term Borrowings 58,02,733
Deferred tax liabilities 2,35,43,807
Short-Term Borrowings 39,74,83,220
Trade Payables 23,14,94,913
Other Current Liabilities 7,68,78,890
Short-Term Provisions 1,98,89,828
Total 75,50,93,391

b) Surplus of assets over liabilities, after adjusting Share Capital Suspense Account and cancellation of existing Share Capital 
was accounted as Business Restructuring Reserve. The balance of Business Restructuring Reserve was  transferred to 
General Reserve on March 31, 2016.

(26) DISCLOSURE ON SPECIFIED BANK NOTES

  During the year, the Company had speciied bank notes or other denomination note as deined in the MCA notiication 
G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Speciied Bank Notes ( SBN) held and transacted during the period from 
November 8, 2016 to December 30,2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notiication is given below

(Amount in `)

Particulars SBNs* Other Denomination Notes Total
Closing Cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 3,63,41,496 72,94,641 4,36,36,137
(+)  Permitted receipts - 22,03,66,440 22,03,66,440
(-)   Permitted payments - 5,29,85,293 5,29,85,293
(-)  Amount deposited in Banks 3,63,41,496 14,81,58,152 18,44,99,648
Closing Cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 2,65,17,635 2,65,17,635

  * For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Speciied Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the notiication of the Gvernment of India, in the 
Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Afairs number S.O.3407E dated the 8th November, 2016

(27)  According to the information available with the company there were no creditors registered under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSME) during the year.  Hence there is no information in regard to the amount dues 
including interest if any to MSME during the year.

(28) Various parties account are subject to conirmation and reconciliation, wherever required.

(29) ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Remittance in Foreign Currency  : (Amount in `)

Travelling Expenses 79,21,940

Dividend Payment 10,82,252

Management Training Programme 27,40,534

(30) CORPORATE INFORMATION

  TCI Express Ltd ,was incorporated as TCI Properties (Pune) Limited, and was later renamed as TCI Express Limited. Pursuant to 
the Scheme of Arrangement approved by the High Court at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and the State of Andhra 
Pradesh, on 14th June 2016, the XPS undertaking of Transport Corporation of India Limited was demerged into TCI Express 
Limited efective from the close of working hours of 31st March 2016. 

(31) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

31.1 Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

  The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis, under the historical cost convention, and in compliance 
wiith the Accounting Standards speciied under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014 .

31.2 Use of Estimates

  The preparation of the inancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates 
and assumptions that afect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported 
income and expenses during the year. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the inancial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could difer from these estimates and the diferences between the 
actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised.

31.3 Cash Flow Statement :

  Cash lows are reported using the indirect metnod, whereby proit / (loss) before extrodinary items and tax is adjusted for the 
efects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash 
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lows from operating, investing and inancing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available informaton.
  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 

maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insigniicant risk of changes in value.

31.4 Operating Cycle :

  The Company has adopted its normal operating cycle as twelve months based on the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation, for the purpose of current / non-current classiication 
of assets and liabilities.

31.5 Classiication of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

  All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for 
the purpose of Current / Non-current classiication of assets and liabilities.

31.6 Fixed Assets 

  Fixed assets are stated at carrying amount i.e. cost less accumulated depreciation.  Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and 
other expenses incidental to acquisition and installation.

  For New Projects, all direct expenses and direct overheads (excluding services provided by employees in Company’s regular 
payroll) are capitalized.

31.7 Impairment of Assets

  At each Balance Sheet date a review is carried out for any indication of impairment in the carrying amount of assets. If the 
carrying amount of an asset exceed the recoverable amount, which is the greater of the estimated net realisable value or the 
value in use of an asset, provision for impairment is made for such excess.  A previously recognised provision for impairment 
is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine its continuance or reversal.

31.8 Depreciation

  Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on straight line method in terms of life span of assets speciied in Schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013.

  Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Proit and Loss from the date on which the asset is acquired while the 
depreciation on asset sold during the year is recognized in the Statement of Proit and Loss till the date of sale of asset.

31.9 Borrowing Costs:

  Borrowing costs that are attirbutable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost 
of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time i.e., more than twelve months to get 
ready for its intended use.  All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Proit and Loss.

31.10 Recognition of Income and Expenditure

(a)  Income and expenditure are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and 
provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.

(b) Freight income is accounted when goods are delivered by the company to customers.
(c) Freight expenses are accounted when hired vehicles deliver goods to the Company at destination. 
(d)  Having regard to the size of operations and the nature and complexities of the Company’s business, freight received/

paid in advance is accounted as income/expense on payment.
(e) Year-end liability in respect of claims for loss and damages is provided as calculated by claims recovery agents.

31.11 Employee Beneits

  Liability for employee beneits, both short and long term , for present and past services which are due as per the terms of 
emplyment are recorded in accordance with AS 15”Employee Beneits

Deined contribution plans:

   The Company’s contribution to provident fund, employee state insurance scheme and labour welfare fund are considered 
as deined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made 
and when services are rendered by the employees.
Gratuity and Leave Encashment

   The Company provides for gratuity, a deined beneit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity 
Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, 
of an amount based on the respective employee’s base salary and the tenure of employment. Gratuity liability is paid to the 
Gratuity trust set up by the Transport Corporation of India Limited (Demerged Company).  A provision for gratuity liability 
to employees is made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

  A provision for leave encashment liability to employees is made on the basis of actuarial valuation.
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31.12 Foreign Exchange Transactions:

(a) Initial recognition

  All transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the dates when the relevant 
transactions take place.

(b) Treatment of exchange diferences

    Any income or expense on account of exchange diference either on settlement or translation is recognised in the 
Statement of Proit and Loss.

31.13 Earning per share

(a)  Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net proit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(b)  For computing the diluted Earnings per share, the net proit or loss attributable to the Equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the efects of the dilutive potential 
equity shares.

31.14 Taxation

  Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes.  Provision for current income tax is made on the current tax 
rates based on assessable income.

  The company provides for deferred tax based on the tax efect of timing diferences resulting from the recognition of items 
in the accounts and in estimating its current tax provision.  The efect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rate is recognized 
in the year in which the change is efected.

  Deferred Tax Liabilities are recognised for all taxable timing diferences. Deferred Tax Assets are recognised only when there is 
reasonable cerainity that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. When 
there are carried forward losses or depreciation under tax losses, all defered tax assets are recognisedonly if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable income. Deferred tax assets, if any, 
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to evaluate their continuance at the amounts at which they are carried.

31.15 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

  Contingent liabilties are not recognised but are disclosed as required in the inancial statements. Contingent assets are 
neither recognised nor disclosed in the inancial statements. 

(32) Previous year igure’s have been regrouped/rearranged whereever considered necessary.

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For R S Agarwala & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 304045E

D.P. Agarwal 

(Chairman)

Chander Agarwal

(Managing Director)

Murali Krishna Chevuturi

(Director)

R S Agarwala

Partner

(Membership No.005534)

P. C. Sharma

(Whole Time Director)

Mukti Lal

(AVP & CFO)

Vinay Gujral

(Co. Secretary)

Place :  Gurugram

Date : May 23, 2017 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Ordinary Business:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited inancial 

statement of the Company for the inancial year ended 

March 31, 2017 & the report of the Board of Directors 

and Auditors thereon

2.  To declare Final Dividend on Equity Shares @ 40% 

(Re. 0.80 per equity share of Rs. 2/- each)

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vineet Agarwal, who 

retires by rotation and being eligible, ofers himself for

re-appointment

4.  To consider and if thought it, to pass, with or 

without modiication(s), the following as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 
139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, as 
amended from time to time, the appointment of M/s. R S 
Agarwala & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 304045E ) as Auditors of the Company for a term of 
Five years i.e. till the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the year 2020, which was subject 
to ratiication at every Annual General Meeting, be and 
is hereby ratiied to hold the oice from the conclusion 
of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 10th

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
the year 2018, at such remuneration, reimbursement of 
out-of-pocket expenses, travelling and other expenses 
incurred in connection with audit to be carried out by 
them, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors of the Company and the Auditors.”

Special Business:

5.  Appointment of Mrs. Taruna Singhi as an Independent 

Director of the Company

  To consider and if thought it, to pass with or without 

modiication(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
149, 152 and other applicable provisions including 
any modification or re-enactment thereof, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made thereunder,  

Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mrs. Taruna 
Singhi, who was appointed as an Additional Director by 
the Board of Directors, whose term expires at this Annual 
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director 
under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company, for a period of Five consecutive 
years effective from January 31, 2017 upto January 30, 
2022 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by 
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Chander Agarwal-Managing 
Director, Mr. P. C. Sharma-Whole Time Director, Mr. Mukti Lal-
CFO and Mr. Vinay Gujral-Company Secretary & Compliance 
Oicer be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be required to give efect to 
the above resolution.”

6. Approval for Material Related Party Transactions

  To consider and if thought it, to pass, with or without 

modiication(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, and pursuant to the consent of the Audit 
Committee vide resolutions passed in their respective 
meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Material Related Party Transactions as 
entered by the company during Financial Year 2016-17 
as per details set out under item no. 6 of the Statement 
annexed to this Notice. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed 
to include any Committee thereof ) be and are hereby 
authorized to perform and execute all such deeds, matters 
and things including delegation of authority as may be 
deemed necessary or expedient to give efect to this 
resolution and for the matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto”.

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday, August 1, 2017 at 

11.30 A.M at Salon II & III, Basement 1, Park Hyatt Hyderabad, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad – 500034, Telangana, to 

transact the following businesses:
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7.  Approval of remuneration of Managing Director in 

excess of 5% of the net proit

  To consider and if thought it, to pass, with or without 

modiication(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT in partial modiication of the earlier 
resolution passed by the shareholders in the 8th Annual 
General Meeting held on November 4, 2016, for appointment 
of Mr. Chander Agarwal as Managing Director and payment 
of remuneration thereof, and in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule 
V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modiication(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being 
in force) and Article of Association of the Company, the 
consent of the Company  be and is hereby accorded to 
pay managerial remuneration to Mr. Chander Agarwal 
as Managing Director in excess of ive percent (5%) of the 
net proits of the Company subject to the overall limits for 
all managerial person speciied in section 197(1) read with 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for a 
period of four years with efect from inancial year 2017-18, 
with authority to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to 
alter and vary the remuneration as it may deem it and to ix 
the basic salary and annual increment within range as ixed 
by the shareholders in the 8th Annual General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company or a Committee thereof be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such act(s), deed(s) and things as may 
deem necessary to give efect to the resolution including 
but not limited to iling of necessary/relevant form(s)/
document(s) with the Registrar of Companies and other 
regulatory authorities and to settle any question or diiculty 
in connection therewith and incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board

For TCI Express Limited

Place: Gurugram Vinay Gujral

Date: 23.05.2017 Company Secretary

& Compliance O�cer

NOTES:

1.  A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON 
A POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE 
EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE 
OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS 
BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING. A PROXY FORM 
IS ENCLOSED FOR THIS PURPOSE.

2.  A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS 
NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT 

MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER 
HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND 
SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER 
PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

3.  An Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 forming part of 
this Notice.

4.  Corporate Members intending to send their authorised 
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to 
send a certiied copy of Board Resolution authorising their 
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
meeting.

5.  In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, additional information on 
directors recommended for appointment/re-appointment 
at the Annual General Meeting and directors liable to retire 
by rotation and seeking re-election is contained in the 
Statement annexed to Notice.

6.  Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice 
and in the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection 
by the Members at the Company’s Registered Oice and 
Corporate Oice on all working days (except Saturdays, 
Sundays and Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. 
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and 
also at the AGM. The relevant documents may be accessed 
at the website www.tciexpress.in

7.  The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed from Thursday, July 27, 
2017 to Tuesday, August 1, 2017 (both days inclusive), for 
determining the names of members eligible for dividend on 
Equity Shares, if declared at the AGM. 

8.  The dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the AGM, will 
be payable on or after August 2, 2017 to those members: 
(a) whose names appear as Members in the Register of 
Members of the Company, as on July 26, 2017, after giving 
efect to valid share transfers in physical form lodged with 
the Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agent; and (b) whose 
names appear as Beneicial Owners in the list of Beneicial 
Owners as on July 26, 2017 furnished by National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL) for this purpose.

9.  Members who are holding shares in physical form are 
requested to notify the change in their respective addresses 
or Bank details to the Company and always quote their Folio 
Numbers in all correspondence with the Company. Those 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify 
any change in addresses or Bank details to their respective 
Depository Participants.

10.  Members who are still holding shares in physical form are 
advised to dematerialize their shareholding to avail of the 
beneits of dematerialization which include easy liquidity since 
trading is permitted only in dematerialized form, electronic 
transfer, savings in stamp duty, prevention of forgery, etc.
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11.  Non-resident Indian members are requested to inform 
Company on:

a.  the change in the residential status on return to India for 
permanent settlement, and

b.  the particulars of the bank accounts maintained in 
India with complete name of Bank, branch, account 
type, account number and address of the bank, if not 
furnished earlier.

12.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated 
the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
for securities market transactions and of market/private 
transactions involving transfer of shares of listed companies 
in physical form. Therefore, it shall be mandatory for the 
transferee(s) to furnish a copy of the PAN card to M/s. Karvy 
Computershare Pvt Ltd for registration of such transfers. 
Members/Investors are therefore requested to make note 
of the same and submit their PAN card copy to M/s. Karvy 
Computershares Pvt Ltd.

13.  Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 individual 
shareholders holding shares in the company singly or jointly 
may nominate an individual to whom all the rights in the 
Shares in the Company shall vest in the event of death of the 
sole / all joint shareholders.

14.  The members are requested to address all their 
communications to Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd., Karvy 
Selenium Tower B, Plot Number 31 and 32, Financial District, 
Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500032, the common agency to 
handle electronic connectivity and the shares in physical 
mode or at the Corporate Oice of the Company for 
prompt redressal.

15. Voting through electronic means:

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, as amended and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is pleased to provide to its members facility 
to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed 
to be passed in the Meeting by electronic means. The 
members may cast their votes using an electronic 
voting system from a place other than the venue of the 
Meeting (‘remote e-voting’). 

II. The members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again. 

III. The Company has engaged the services of Karvy 
Computershare Private Limited (“Karvy”) as the Agency 
to provide e-voting facility. 

IV.   The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 
Shri. Vasanth Bajaj, Practicing Company Secretary 
as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner and he has 
communicated his willingness to be appointed and 
will be available for same purpose.

V.  Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid- up value 
of shares registered in the name of the member/ 
beneicial owner( in case of electronic shareholding) as 
on the cut-of date i.e. July 26, 2017. 

VI.  A person, whose name is recorded in the register 
of members or in the register of beneicial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut of date, 
i.e. July 26, 2017 only, shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-voting. 

VII.  Any person who becomes a member of the Company 
after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and holds 
shares as on the cut-of date i.e. July 26, 2017, may 
obtain the User ID and password in the manner as 
mentioned below: 

  (a)  If the mobile number of the member is registered 
against Folio No. / DP ID Client ID, the member may 
send SMS: 

    MYEPWD E-Voting Event Number+ Folio No. or DP ID 
Client ID to 1-800-3454-001 

   Example for NSDL: 

   MYEPWD<space>In12345612345678 

   Example for CDSL: 

   MYEPWD<space> 1402345612345678

   Example for Physical: 

   MYEPWD<space> XXXX1234567890 

(b)  If e-mail address or mobile number of the member 
is registered against Folio No./DP ID Client ID, then 
on the home page of https://evoting.karvy.com,
the member may click “Forgot Password” and enter 
Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a 
password. 

(c)  Member may call Karvy’s toll free number 1-800-
3454-001. 

(d)  Members may send an e-mail request to

   evoting@karvy.com

VIII.  If the member is already registered with Karvy e-voting 
platform then he can use his existing User ID and 
password for casting the vote through remote e-voting. 

   The remote e-voting facility will be available during the 
following period:

   Commencement of remote e-voting: From 10.00 a.m. 
(IST) on July 29, 2017 End of remote e-voting: Up to 
5.00 p.m. (IST) on July 31, 2017.

   The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the 
aforesaid date and time and the e-voting module shall 
be disabled by Karvy upon expiry of aforesaid period.

IX. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the 
meeting (Insta Poll) and through remote e-voting, 
will, not later than forty eight hours of conclusion of 
the Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report 
and submit the same to the Chairman. The results 
declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s 
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report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.tciexpress.in and on the website of Karvy
https://evoting.karvy.com. The results shall simultaneously 
be communicated to the Stock Exchanges. 

X. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date 
of the Meeting, i.e. August 1, 2017.

XI. Instructions and other information relating to remote 
e-voting

   A.  Shareholders of the Company holding shares either 
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 
record date, may cast their vote electronically. 

  a.  Launch internet browser by typing the URL: 
https://evoting.karvy.com.

  b.  Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and 
password) which will be sent separately. The 
E-Voting Event Number, Folio No. or DP ID Client 
ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your 
existing User ID and password for casting your vote. 
If required, please visit https://evoting.karvy.com or 
contact toll free number 1-800- 3454-001 for your 
existing password.

  c.  After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“LOGIN”. 

  d.  You will now reach password change Menu 
wherein you are required to mandatorily change 
your password. The new password shall comprise 
minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case 
(A-Z), one lower case (a- z), one numeric (0-9) and a 
special character (@,#,$,etc.). The system will prompt 
you to change your password and update your 
contact details like mobile number, email address, 
etc. on irst login. You may also enter a secret question 
and answer of your choice to retrieve your password 
in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended 
that you do not share your password with any other 
person and that you take utmost care to keep your 
password conidential.

  e.  You need to login again with the new credentials. 

  f.  On successful login, the system will prompt you to 
select the E-Voting Event Number for TCI Express 
Limited 

  g.  On the voting page enter the number of shares 
(which represents the number of votes) as on the 
cut-of date under“FOR/ AGAINST” or alternatively, 
you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and 
partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/ 
AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your 
total shareholding as on the cut- of date. You may 
also choose the option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held 
will not be counted under either head. 

  h.  Members holding shares under multiple folios 
/ demat accounts shall choose the voting 

process separately for each of the folios / 
demat accounts. 

  i.  Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice 
separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote 
on any speciic item it will be treated as abstained.

  j. You may then cast your vote by selecting an 
appropriate option and click on “Submit

  k.  A conirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to 
conirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you conirm, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During 
the voting period, members can login any number 
of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s). 

  l.  Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also required to 
send scanned certiied true copy (PDF Format) 
of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter, etc., together with attested 
specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail
ID: scrutinizer_tciexp@vkbajajassociates.com. They 
may also upload the same in the e-voting module 
in their login. The scanned image of the above 
mentioned documents should be in the naming 
format “Corporate Name_EVENT NO.

B.  In case a member receives physical copy of the Notice 

by Post [for members whose e-mail addresses are not 

registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s)]: 

  a.  User ID and initial password - These will be provided in 

the Attendance Slip for the AGM. 

  b.  Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (a) To (l) as mentioned 

in (A) above, to cast your vote. 

C.  Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the 

member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently 

or cast the vote again. 

D.  In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please 

visit Help & FAQ’s section available at Karvy’s website

https://evoting.karvy.com. The scrutinizer shall, 

immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual 

General Meeting, irst count the votes cast at the meeting, 

thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 

in the presence of at least two(2) witnesses not in the 

employment of the Company and make not later than forty 

eight hours of conclusion of the meeting a consolidated 

scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, 

if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 

writing who shall countersign the same.

   The results declared along with the report of the 

scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 

www.tciexpress.in immediately after the result is declared 

by the Chairman. The Company shall, simultaneously, 

forward the results to the stock exchanges where the 

shares are listed.
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Explanatory Statement under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors have appointed Mrs. Taruna Singhi as Additional Director in category of Non-Executive Independent Director 
with efect from January 31, 2017. In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, she will hold oice up to the date 
of this Annual General Meeting. In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualiication of Directors), Rules 2014, an Independent Director shall hold oice for a period upto Five consecutive years and shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

Mrs. Taruna Singhi is not disqualiied from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to 
act as Director. The Company has received declaration that she meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors considered the matter of her appointment in its meeting held on May 23, 2017 and felt that her 
association would be of immense benefit to the Company and proposed her appointment as Independent Director 
under Section 149 of the Act, whose office shall not be liable to retirement by rotation, to hold office for a term of Five 
years commencing from January 31, 2017 upto January 30, 2022. In the opinion of the Board, she fulfill the conditions 
of appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

The Company has received notices in writing from member in terms of Section 160 of the Act alongwith deposit of requisite amount 
proposing her candidature to be appointed as director in this Annual General Meeting.

Copy of draft letter of appointment of Mrs. Taruna Singhi as Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions of appointment 
are available for inspection by the members at the registered oice and corporate oice of the Company and can be accessed at the 
website www.tciexpress.in.

Her brief resume, educational and professional qualiications, nature of work experience etc. are given under the head “Additional 
Information”.

Mrs. Taruna Singhi is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice with regard to her appointment. The relatives of Mrs. 
Taruna Singhi may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding, 
if any, in the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way 
concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item  No. 5.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 5 as an ordinary resolutions to the Shareholders for their approval.

Item No.6

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 provides that all Related Party Transactions shall 
require approval of the Audit Committee and all Material Related Party Transactions require approval of the shareholders 
through Ordinary Resolution. A transaction with a related party shall be considered material, if the, transaction/ transactions 
to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a inancial year exceeds ten percent of the 
annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited inancial statements of the Company. Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 deals with Related Party Transactions and Sub section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
provides that nothing in this sub section shall apply to any transaction entered into by the company in its ordinary course of 
business and at arm’s length basis. All the related party transactions entered are in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s 
length basis.

During the Financial year 2016-17, the Equity Shares of your Company got listed with National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
and BSE Ltd on December 15, 2016, accordingly the regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 has been applicable from the date of listing. Your Company has entered into Related Party Transactions 
with Related Parties as deined under section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Accounting Standards, as 
detailed below, which are of value exceeding 10% of the Annual Consolidated Turnover of the Company as per the Last 
Audited Financial Statement of the Company. 

Therefore, the Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 6 as an Ordinary resolution to the shareholders for 
their approval.

Except Mr. D.P. Agarwal, Director, Mr. Chander Agarwal, Managing Director and Mr. Vineet Agarwal, Director and their relatives being 
related parties, none of other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in anyway concerned or interested in the 
resolution set out at Item No 6.
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Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction Value of Transactions in Rs. Nature of Relationship

Transport Corporation of India Ltd. Availing/Rendering of Services /  Rental 
Transactions

5,46,62,219

Group Companies/
Associates

TCI Developers Ltd. 82,22,100

Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd
Availing/Rendering of Services

29,57,158

TCI Institute of Logistics 2,37,100

TCI Properties (West) Ltd.

Rental Transactions

4,21,200

XPS Cargo Services Ltd 2,67,72,300

TCI Foundation 7,32,600

TCI Properties (Delhi) 1,02,12,000

TCI Warehousing (MH) 4,53,600

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd 8,40,000

TCI Properties (Guj) 4,40,000

TCI India Ltd. Purchase of Goods 3,48,211

Item No.7

In terms of the recommendation of the Board of Directors, the shareholders of the Company in the 8th Annual General Meeting 

approved the appointment of Mr. Chander Agarwal as Managing Director and payment of remuneration thereof for a period 

of ive years efective from August 18, 2016. Section 197(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides lexibility to the Company to 

pay in excess of 5% to any individual being Managing Director or Whole Time Director or Manager, as long as the remuneration 

does not exceed 10% of the net proits of the Company, subject to the approval of shareholders. Accordingly the approval of the 

Shareholders is being sought in terms of the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder 

and other applicable provisions for payment of Managerial Remuneration to Mr. Chander Agarwal in excess of 5% of the net proit 

computed under section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Except Mr. D.P. Agarwal, Director, Mr. Chander Agarwal, Managing Director and Mr. Vineet Agarwal, Director and their relatives 

being related parties, none of other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in anyway concerned or interested 

in the resolution set out at Item No 7.

Additional Information: Brief proile of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment: 

Particulars Mr. Vineet Agarwal Mrs. Taruna Singhi

Age 44 years 63 years

Qualiications B.Sc. (Econ.) B.A

Expertise in speciic
functional Area

Mr. Vineet Agarwal is Managing Director of Transport 
Corporation of India Limited (TCI). Under the leadership of 
Mr. Vineet Agarwal, TCI has adapted to new technologies 
and work systems to grow from strength to strength. He 
has played a key role in orienting the organization to move 
from being a mere trucking company to evolve as one of 
Asia’s foremost integrated supply chain solutions provider. 
Please refer Company’s website: www.tciexpress.in for 
detailed proile.

Mrs. Taruna Singhi is associated with Taurus Home 
Furnishings Limited, a company exporting (home 
furnishings) made up to the USA, Europe and 
Japan.The company is known for its high design 
quotient giving it a distinct edge globally. She is 
an alumni of Harvard Business School where she 
completed her executive OPM programme.
Please refer Company’s website: www.tciexpress.in
for detailed proile.

Terms and Conditions 
of Appointment/ 
Reappointment

As per existing terms and conditions As per the resolution at item no. 5 of the Notice 
convening Annual General Meeting on August 
1, 2017 read with explanatory statement thereto

Remuneration Last drawn 
(including sitting fee, if  any)

Rs. 3.00 Lakhs Rs. 3.00 Lakhs

Remuneration Proposed to
be paid

Non-Executive/Independent Director are eligible for payment of sitting fee for attending Board or Committee 
meetings thereof as approved by the Board from time to time within the prescribed limits. Non-Executive/
Independent Directors may be paid commission subject to a limit of 0.5% of the net proits of the Company 
computed under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as approved by the shareholders.

Date of irst appointment on
the Board

October 7, 2015 January 31, 2017
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Particulars Mr. Vineet Agarwal Mrs. Taruna Singhi

Relationship with other 
Directors / KMP

Related to Mr. D.P Agarwal-Director and Mr. Chander 
Agarwal-Managing Director of the Company

Not related to any Director / Key Managerial 
Personnel

Number of meetings of
the Board attended during
the year

05 –

Directorship held in other 
Companies

Transport Corporation of India Ltd.
Transcorp International Ltd.  
TCI Developers Ltd.
TCI-CONCOR Multimodal Solutions Pvt. Ltd
Gloxinia Farms Pvt. Ltd.
Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd.
LOGLABS Ventures Private Limited
TCI Institute of Logistics
YPO South Asia Chapter

Address Home Retail Private Limited
Taurus Merchandising Private Limited
Tapas Holding Private Limited
ATR Exports Private Limited

Membership / 
Chairmanship of the 
Committees of other 
Companies 

Transport Corporation of India Ltd.
Member-Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Member-Share Transfer Committee, 
Member-Corporate & Restructuring Committee 
Member-Finance Committee
TCI Developers Ltd.
Member-Audit Committee, 
Member-Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Member-Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Member-Share Transfer Committee
Transcorp International Ltd.
Member- Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Member-Audit Committee, 
Member-Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
Member-CSR Committee

--

Number of Equity Shares 
held in the Company

9,91,467 --
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Sorting 
Centres

28

Company
Branches

550

Express
Routes

400

Feeder  
Routes

2500

Hub & Spoke Network B2B

Express Network

 Sorting Centres  |  Branch Oices
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SBUs and services

Other Group Companies

FTL/FCL, LTL & Over-

dimensional cargo services 

through road, rail & sea.

JV  with CONCOR to provide

end to end multi modal 

solutions.

A Single-window 

solutions enabler  from 

conceptualization to 

implementation.

TDL undertakes development 

of the commercial properties 

of TCI. It also develops large 

scale Warehouses, Logistics 

Parks etc.

Leading player in Coastal 

Shipping, NVOCC & Project 

Cargo.

JV with Mitsui & Co for 

Auto logistics (Toyota India 

project)

Engaged in areas of education, 

women and child health, 

disability alleviation and rural 

sports growth.

A JV between Indorama Eleme 

Petrochemicals Ltd. and TCI 

Global

TCI Transportation 

Company Nigeria Ltd.

Transport Corporation of India Limited

Key associate company & 
other group companies
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Listed Entity Rated By

Corporate Information

TCI Express Limited
(Formerly TCI Properties (Pune) Limited)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. MuktiLal

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Vinay Gujral   

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. R.S Agarwala & Co., Chartered Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

State Bank of India   
HDFC Bank  

REGISTERED OFFICE

Flat No. 306 & 307 1-8-27 1 To 273,
3rd Floor, AshokaBhoopal Chambers, S.P
Road, Secunderabad-500003, Telangana
Tel: +91-40-27840104 
email: secretarial@tciexpress.in
website: www.tciexpress.in

CORPORATE OFFICE

TCI House, 69
Institutional Area, Sector-32,
Gurgaon-122001 (Haryana)
Tel: +91-124-2384090-94

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd  
Karvy Selenium, Tower-B,  
Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District
Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500032
Tel: +91-040-67161524,
Website: www.karvycomputershare.com
Email: Rajeev.kr@karvy.com

Corporate Identi�cation No. CIN: U62200TG2008PLC061781
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